Opening statement on behalf of the Government
by Tom DeWolfe, Special Assistant to the
Attorney General of the United States, in criminal
case 31712, "U.S. v. Iva Ikuko Toguri D'Aquino”
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| Attorney General of the United States. Will you stand up?

3

l
OPENING STATEMERT OF BEHAIF OP THE GOVERNMENT ]
MR. DE WOLP: May it plesse your Honor, ladies and gantli—

men of the jury: My name is Tom de Wolf. I am a special
asaiastant to ths attorney general of the United 3tates from
Washington, D. C. and as such have been sent here by the
Attorney General to work on this case in conjunction with Frank
J. Hannesay, this gentleman here, who Interrogated some of you
ladies and gentlemen yesterday, who 1s now and has been for
many years the duly appointed and acting United States District
Attorney for your federal judicial diatrict, which is the
Korthern Federal Judicial District of Czlifornla. He 18 sta-
tioned here locally at San Francisco and bas offices at Eacra-i
mento likewis= and has Jurisdiction over the Korthern District
of California.

Although I am traveling out of Washington, D. C. I might say
that I am a western, Pacific northwesterner, and not an easturq—
ar. That is of no interest now to you.

A3 you know, I think you have been jurors, the yanipa
men and thevenire ladies here before, his Honor preslding 1?
chief Paderal Judge of the Northern District of Californla, hiJ
Honor, Michael J. Roche.
Now with me in this case is Jobn B. Hogan, my colleagus

from Washington, who is likewiss a spacial assistant to the

Mr. James Enapp arrived hers yesterday. Will you atand up?
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| man hera. You will hear a lot from him. I suppose he ls chief

He is likewlse from the Department of Juatice. I doubt whether
he will interrogate witnesses, but in any event he wlll act as
& consultant and as a legal resegrch man for us. A cass of thip
type entalls and necessitates that type of asslstance.

And you have here the defendant, Mrs. Iva Togurld DiAqulino,

who befors ahe was married in April 1945 was named Iva Ikuko

S

Toguri. She married Mr. Philip D'Aquino, a part Portugusse =nd}

PRCT

part Japanese, in April 1945, and that instead of bLeing Miss

Tva Ikuko Toguri, her name now i1s Mra. Iva Togurl D'Aquino,

L e

D=!=jp=g=U=1=N~0,

Now Mr. Wayne Collins is chief defense counsel, this gentle

defense counsel. I have known him for soms pericd of tims.

And his colleague hers will likewise narticipate, a Ban

Franclsco counsellor, Mr. Theodore Tamba.

And with this gentlemsn is Mr. George Olshausen, the
sscond barrister there behind Mr. Collins. Mr. Olshausen, |
g-l-s-h-a-u-s-2-n.

How I want to aspeak about certain preliminaries. It won't

be necessary for me to indulge in them except briefly, because,

as 1s unusual in » case of this types, we have to a certain ai-:-i
tent among you ladiss and gentlemen at least partially some !
experienced petit vepireman. You are called petit jurnfﬂ bacause
you try cases in the trial ecourta as contradistinguished to

grand jurors who hear evidence to determine whether or not an
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the facts on behalf of their cllents, the reapectlive parties ?
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.

indictment shall be returned against certaln individuzls.
The Court's function in this case iIs to inatruct you as
to all matters of law. You must of necesaity take your law

from the Court and from the CQourt only. Any colloquies batween

opposing counsel, and ther= will be some® that you will hear, u?
lagal matters should in their entirety be disregarded by you. !
I repeat, it 1s your aworn duty, your duty under your oath, to
take your law from the Court and from the Court alones. That
is the Court's function. Your function 1s to pass upon the
facts. You ladies and gentlemsn are the sole arbitera of the
facts. That 1a your function, to listen to the evidence, find
the facts and determine whersin the truth lies. You and =sach af
you are the sole judge of the credibllity of each and every
witness. You and you alone determine where the truth lles.

You don't take the facts from the counsel, you take them |

Trom the evidence as induced heres from the lips of wilitnesses,
from the defendant and the government, and from the dnnumcntarf
evidence that is Introduced by both parties, and you find vher&
the truth lies, what the factas are. ¥You are the sole judges nf
that. i

The function of counael in the case 1s to present to you I;

litigant to this proceesding. ;

The United States of America, of course, 13 the plalntiff
|

in thiszs ca=ze, and the dafendant 1z Mra. D'Aquino. Soa the
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lavyars propsrly present the facts to you, and T might sey
in this case there probably will be a conflict in the svidence,
and you resolvs that conflict, you determine who 1s telling
the tryuth, wharein the truth lies,

The Court will from time to time and at the termination %r
the case give you instructions of law which you will apply to E
those facts in aiding you, after hearing these legal prinniplcé
fyom the Court, to determine whether or not the facts and the
charge are proven &3 lald.

Now the purpose of an opening statement, which I am now
making, 1s merely this: It serves one function, one purpose
only. I am not supposed to argue to you now. Defense counsal
is not supposed to argues to you in his opening statement. What
wa are supposed to dp, if we pee Tit to exerciase our optlon te
do 1t, 13 to summarize the proof which the govermment will see
it to attempt to introduce in this case before you In order to
substantiate the material allegations of the indictm=nt. |
Briefly, then, to put it another way, the purpose of an opsn-
ing statement 1s to summarize before you what the government
expects to prove. The xefendant has the same opportunity through
har counsel, at this or a later date, to do that.

¥ow the Grand Jury for the Federal Northern Judiclal Dis-
triect of California last September, after hearing certain
svidence, found probable causs to believe that the defendant in

this case had committed the crime of treason, and as a |
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" this juncture attempt for your edification, If it 1s at all’

rae

unnﬂ¢qu¢n¢u of that finding a true bill of indictmeant Was ne-
turned against the defendant by sald grand jurors uharging han
?ihh a violation of an Act of Congresa making it a crime_tw
commit treason. .i E%E
Now that indictment which is on file in this nﬂurfti; \

not svidense. It is a mere paper charge, and I think the nnu?F
will instruct you to that effect atithe approprifts tims sub-
saqusntly. BRI

I am not going to take the time now to pagd to you tﬁiﬁ

somevhat lengthy and verbose indiectment, but I will hriufly-at.

11luminating to you -- it might not be -- to briefly akalntun-?
ize and summarigze the material allegations of the sams.

The indictment salleges in substance that the defendant
was en Amarican cltizen, native born, in the town of Los
Angeles, Loz Angeles County, Ealirnrnia; on July %, 1916. The
indictment likewise alleges that during the perliod In contro-
versy, as pleaded by the grand jurors for this district in
this indictment, the defendant was and is now by wirtus of heJ
citizenship a person who owed alleglance to the Unlted Etﬁtaa
of America. That, of coursze, is a very, very materlal allega-
tion in the indictmsnt.

The indictment alleges ghat 2lthough the defendant 1s an
Awerican citizen and one who owed ber allegiance to her mnative

land, the United Statea, that she through certaln acts adhersd
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i
v to and gave ald and comfort to the imperial government of Japan
< during the late war while our government, the United States of |
g America, was at war with our enemy, the imperial government of
& i Japan, and that while she adhered to the imperial Japanese |
5 | government she gave it aid and comfort. i
2 The indictment further alleges that this ndhuruncé, that
f thia alleged aid and comfort of the enemy conslsted in dgta of
S the defendant while employed in the Broadcasting Garpqraﬂinn n;
= Japan as a radio speaker, as & commsntator, as a script ?éiteri
= and as an announcer of recorded musle and propasganda trans-
L | mitted to American troops on the battlefields, during the late
12 | war between the United States and the imperial government of
L3 Japan.
iy | The indictment further alleges that the Broadecasting
= ? Corporationof Japan, by whom the defendent was employed for
18 1 this work, was during all times in question and during the timds
17 mentioned and pleaded by the grand jurors in this indictment, i
18'_ a corporation that was under the sxclusive and sols control ufE
e the imperlal Japanesse government.
20 | The indictment returned by the grand jurors alleged that
= these acts of giving ald and comfort to the enemy, these acts
28 allegedly -- and bear in mind still that this is nothing but a
& charge,ladies and gentlemsn -- these acts allegedly on her part
o as a broadcaster and announcer of adharing to the Japanese
2y government, through this Broadeasting Corporation of Japan,
KunmeTit G GAGAH I
REBCATTITE SFCHTER .
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were committed by her and by the Japansse government for the

purpose of undermining the morale of the American troops on thn
battluriﬂld, for the purpose of creating nostalgie among the i
_Auurican fighting men, for the purpose, the indictment alleges,
nf ﬂrﬂating homesickness among the American soldiers, and for |
;tne lnat and consequent purposs of impeding and impairing the
ﬂnitud 3tates of America In its sovereipn capacity to wage war
i agninst Japan and its then Axis enemies.

f{ || The indictment in the case, and I think I am covering it
&urﬁ]rapidly and I hope a 1ittle more thoroughly than I would
by reading 1t to you, then alleges, and this is important, you
¥ill hear a lot about it later, that in order to and for the
purpoaz of, ladies and gentlemen, executing this unlawful

alleged treasonous plan, certain overt acts wers committed by

the defendant in this case. There are esight overt metat osis |
: {
pleaded by the grand Jurors in the indictment, which overt amcts,

1t 1s alleged in the indictment, were committed by the defen- |
dent f'or the purpose of executing this treasonous plen of hers.

Overt act 1 in the indictment deals with the discussion
by the defendent concerning her participation in this radio
pProgram,

Overt nct 2 deals with a discussion by the defendant with

jthe employees of the Broadcasting Gorporation of Japan cnncarn-1

Jing the quality of a specific broadcast. j
{

Overt act 3 deals with her speaking into the mierophone in
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Radio Tokyo doncerning the broadcast from & sound track film of
& certain motion picturs involving aspects of the war.

overt act 4 deals with broadcasting by her or speaking by
her into a microphone concerning a certaln specific broadcaat.

Overt act 5 concerna thea preparation by the defendant of
aoripta concerning loss of ships.

Overt act 6 ooncerns the speaking by the defendant into
the microphone of a certain broadcast involving losa of nmariﬁan
ships in a battle between American naval forces and Japanease
naval forces.

Overt act T deals with thepreparation by the defendant of
a specific script, radio broadcasting script for broadcasting
pUrposss.

Overt act 8 in the indictment deals with the broadcasting
by tha defendant intec the microphone of a certaln entertalnment
dialogue for the purpose of having the same transmitted over the
alr» to the troops.

Thoas ars the eight overt acts in the indictment whish fnh
will have to deal with.

The indictment then goes on to allege that each and every
one of thess treasonous acts were committad by:ths defendant
pursuant to the treasonous plan heretofore mentionsd for the
purpose of executing the same, and in addition the indictment
gays with the intent if her, the defendant, Mrs. D'Aguino, then

and there to ald and comfort the enemy, with the intent in hep |

l

then and there to edhers iptthe Ilmperial Japaness government and

rarm-
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11

the intent in her then and there to betray her native land, the

Unitad Atate=z opfAmearica.

The indictment then goes on to allege that the Pederal
Northern Judiclal District of California was the Pederal Judl- |

|
cial Dlstrict into which this defendant was first brought. !
!
How before I go on to another phase of the case, and I

think 1t will probably be of some interest to you, most lawyers)
|
do not about it and I did not know anything about 1t until a |

i couple of years ago, you wonder, naturally, all peoples Hundar,é

]

moat lawysrs wWopder, 1f those acts wers committed in the Orient
as the indictment alleges -- the Indictment doea not allege

the commisalon of any treasonous acts In the United States, 1t
allsges that she committed treason by adhering to the impsrial
Japansas government not in the United Statea but whiles she was
abroad acting as a broadcaster for the Japansse, Everybody
asks, of course,"How come she is tried in 3an Prancisco?” Well

we will introduce avidence on that point. This is the anawvar:

A congressional ensctment provides that when & crime, a reﬁuralg
statutory crime i committed by & person without the juris- i
dietion of any state or any federal judiecial district, the ?
particular United States District Court -- and his Honor, Ghieﬂ
Faderal Judge Michasl J. Roche 1is presiding heres and this 1is
the United States Distriet Court for the Northern District of

California =-=- if the federal atatutory crime ia committed, it

OFFICIAL REPORTERS
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says, out of tha jurisdiction of the United 3tates or any
2
federal judicisl district, the particular federal judielal
3
diatriet into vhich the defendant was firatibrought has juris-
4_ 3
diction, and the proof as I will later outline 1t, will show |
& !
that the Northern District of California was the first judieiml
a Al ¥
district into which the defendant, Mra. D'Aguino, was first !
" |
brought shortly prior to the return of the indictment in this |
a8 .
cane, |
=] |
That is explanatory only, interesting only from & lavyer's
10 {
point of view and from a layman's point of view, in order to |
11 i
satiafy our curiosity as to hov we happened to be proceeding in
12
this particular jurisdiction here rather than in New York,
13
Seattle, Portland, or LOoS Angeles.
14
i Now bafore I go into the facts, I vant to say & few other
15 |
i things. The burden of proof, as the Court will tell you in
Lla
this case, and as you know undoubtedly from your experience and
17
: therafors it will not be necessary for me Lo dwell on 1t but !
15
for a moment, the burden of proof 1s upon the Unlted 3tates of
L85
| America to prove to your satisfactlion beyond a reasonable doubt
a0 |
i the truth and verity of esach and every material allegation and
21 .
averment 1n this indictwmsnt. Not only that, ladies and gentle-
]
men of the jury, but in a federal criminel proceeding, llke most
23 .
state proceedings, the defendant, ne matter what the race, cresd
24
or color, whether male or female, no matter who they are, the
25
i defendant 1s always clothed with the presumption of lnnocence,
| as 1s Mrs. D'Aquino in this case.
Bes e E Tl . GAGAT
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1
1=37 1 That presumption of imnocence follows her throughout the trial
Mack=-oonM |
2 proceodings in this case, untlil &ll the evidence 1s in, until i
3 you recelve your Instructions from the Court, until you retire|
& for purposes of dellberatlion to your jury room. ' Throughout
. that porlod of time you must keep ani' open mind. She is uluthiaq
S with the presumptlon of innocence; and thet presumption of 1
/! irnocence does not fall until a1l the evidence is in, until |
: you heve retired to deliberate, until you have heard the argue
2 ments of counsel, until the Court has instructed you, end until
1 h
o | you arrlve at that point where you are satisfied that the
11
United States of America has proved to your satisfaction and to
12
the satisfacticon of each and every one of you that the material
13
| averments in this indictment laid by the Orand Jurors for your |
14 district has been proven to your satisfection beyond & reascn-
L5 able doubts.
18 Now, the defendant is charged with wvioleting & congres=-
17 sional enactment, on sct of Congross, the treoason statute, |
= ladieons and gentlemen. That tresson statute seys in subatance,
L "Rhoever, owing allegiance to the United States of kmerica,
<0 adheres to the enemy, pglving them ald and comfort, is guilty of
£ tregaon.”
22
! Now, Article III, Sectlon 3, of the Constitution of the
23
| Tnited States provides in substance, "No one shall be convicted
24
E of tromson unloss on the testimeny of two witnesses to the same
20
| overt mct.” If my recollection sorves me properly, from a
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TXLOUTIVE ELAOETIR
Epraen W, LEHNER
JoszrH J. S=BENET :
CLakERCE Fo WiaHT
S e Dt OFFICIAL REPORTERS
¥ Uniied Scates Distoact Court
k Marthemn District of Californis




] . 14
E.
: legrlistic atandpoint, I will tell you ladles and gentlemen
z of the jury that treason ia the only crime that the foundling
2 fathers saw fit to define, or any portion thereof, in the
g Constitution. It is & heinous erime; it is a serlous orime,
& 1t's an odious offense, end history hes 1t, according to the
S writera, that the founding fathers saw it to include thias
2 | stringent requirement of two-wltness proof to aach overt act
© in & treason cherge in the Constitution because of apprehen=- |
2 sionas thet they had of unwarrented and wmjust treason prose-
20 ecutions brought by the Mother country sgainst jmericm colonlaty
s prior to the Revolutionary War; and in addition to the Con=-
e atitutional requirement that before a person cen be convicted
s of tresmson there rust be two witnesses produced by the Unlted
1% States to the same overt mct, I will state to you, and I |
ot believe quite correctly =-- however, always romembering that |
o if sny lawyer for the goverrment or for the defense makea any
o gtatement of law to you, you are not to adopt that as finel,
2 only explanatory, you take your law from the Court, not from
2 me, not from my collesgues, not from defense counsel =-- the
o courts have held, and I belleve Judge Roche will tell you the
0 same thing at & subsequent time or an appropriate time, ‘that
5 the proof to sustaln these overt scts must be direct, ss contra-
o= distinguished from ciroumstentlal evidence.
) The United States Courts have adopted or engrafted that
= judicial interpretetion on this constitutionsl provialoen,
[
KENNETH G, GAGAN ll
oo | |
SRR | |
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requiring two-wltnesa proof to each and every overt act lald |
in the indictmente |
S0 much for the preliminary lasues, or pl‘ﬂlimi-_';ﬂﬂ.l"j' A - n
planatory matterss The defendant 1s represented here by
counsels She has entered a plea of not gullty to this i‘ndiut-l
ment, and that simply memns that she donles the truthfulness
of each end every material allegation In this Indictment, that
the material averments of the Indletment are in issuss The |
government must prove the truthfulness of those material Ale
legations to your satisfactlon beyond & ressonable doubt hﬂfurtls
you cén canvicths |

How, alfter o lapse of sano time, I will get down to the

proof, and the cpening statemant to you, ladies and genGlemen
as I have aald bofore, merely serves the purpoas and ﬂmctim,é
or should, of explaining to you the lssues mnd the subsatance
of the proof which each party lltigent expeoct to adduce from
the witness atend or by documentary evidenca, for the purpoae
of enabling you and each and evory one of you to determine
whether or not the charge has been proved.

The ovidence Iin thls cmae will show that the deflendent
was born in the United Btates, that azhe 1a an Amerlcan -citiaan".
that she was borm in los /ngelea, Loa /npgeleas County, July 4,

1916, !

The evidence willl show that she la the porson who durlng

the late war owed alleglence to her asoverelpn, her native
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L sovereaip, the United Etatm.; of America.
& She went to high schocls, according to the evidence, in
e Southern California. OShe entered the University of Californis,
& Los Angeles branch, and graduated therefrom, I belleve in the
5 year 1941, with the degree of Bachelor of Sclences
& n the summer of 1941, I think arowund the 4th of July,
: y hor birthday, she went to Jepen. Her mother and father were |
& capanese cltizenas They were not born In the Unlted States. 1
> che went to Japan, according to some of the proof, to sse a
= tlck aunte. According to statementa made by the defendant to
L varlous people, her aunt was then suffering from dimbetes,
= end the defendant's mother wented her, the defendant, to go to
= Tokyo to seo the slstor of the mother of the defendant. That,
s accorclng to the proof will be the defendant's version of 1t. |
L2 There wlll be gnvuﬁmmt proofs E
e There will be other evidence to the effect that the de- |
i fundent wanted to go to Japan fo further her university t.‘.:wla:.ﬂ.ln.--E
o ing and te study medlcine at & Japenese medlical school, she
i having ﬂlmﬁdr roecelved & degree Ba & Bachelor of Science in
o the Unlverslty of Callfornia, Los Angeles branch, at Los _
o Angologs
o In any eveut, she goes over to Japan in the summer of
2 1941, and there willi‘hﬂ scme evidence that after Pearl Harbor
% ooccurred she made some atteupt to repatriate heraelf to the
o Unlted Statea, but finally abandonad her attempt to repatriate
i
Kniemn G, Gagas
Bt J. SwEiRy, T : |
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i typlset, typing monitored English and dmerd can=forelpn radio

17

herself to the United States, sbandoned her attempts to
ovacuate herself, and ¥oluntarily staeyed on in Japen, which
the ovidence will show was the land of ;nar ancoators.

In 1942, according to the proof, Mrs. D'Aquino, may, I
muppose that is what you say, I have forgotten -- then Miss
Iva Togurd, went to & school called the Japanese Culture and
Lenguage Schools She lived with her sunt and unecle in Tokyo
Tor awhile in 1942 while the war wms golng on, snd according
to the proof, in the summer of 1942 obtained a position as a

broadeasts in the employ of Domel, Degem=g=i » B Japanese
poverrmental news agencye

cIn the summer of 1943, sccording to the proof which the
government expeocts to introduce, of her om volition, and at
her own request, and through her omn Initiative, she obtained
& position at Radlo Tokyo, firat as a typlst, in approximately
huguat 1942, and in November 1943 sho went on the elr for the !
enemy end steyed on the sir for the enemy for compencation from
November 1043 wuntil shortly after the terminatlon of hositilitim
batween the Imperdinl Japanese Covernment and the representa= 1
tive of the United Stetes, General MacArthur, the latter perd
of Auguat or first part of September 1945; I have forgotten 4
the exect dato. £Aa I recell it, I was on the emat coast ot
that time, and I think they called V-7 day arocund August 15, |

1845. T think the metusl surrender was September 1945, In

am
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any event, she was on the radlo for the Japanese as an gn-

< | nouncer and script writer, from November 1943 wntil August
5 | 1948, approximately.

3.40 * The evidence which the United States will introduce will
& show and disclose that she was under no duress or under no
g compulslon when she engaged in this work. The defendant mey
7 have teatimony to the contrarys. There may be B confliect of i
£ teatimony on thats. If so, I have just expleined to you, and I
o the explanation was not necessary == you probably already lmawi
e whatoyour duties were == that's wheres you all coms in, to find
T | wherein the truth lles. If there is & conflict, 1f there is
b f @ dispute In the facts, that is your function. In any avent,
- the evidence will show that Radlo Tokyo, which wma the popular
L 'l appellation or copnomen or neme plven the Japsnese radlo sta-
da tlon In Tokyo, 1a more mccurately called the Broadcas ting
M . Oorporation of Japan.
! The defendant was employed in the cmpacity I have Just
o | related by the Broadecasting Corporation of Japane The evi=- :
22 dence on behalf of the Unlted Stptes will show that the Broade :
o casting Oorporation of Japan was not & separate entity une
o controlled by the government, such as we find c&rpnmtinns ' -
= ihﬂt"ﬂ in the Unlted States, but that in all major aspects 1t 'nramg
2= ;‘nnt o private corporation, it was & public corporation nmtmlh;'l
7 | by tho Imperlal Japanose Govermment at all times during the time
25

{ the defendent was employed thers, end therefors the evidence

.
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will consequently show that the defendant was glving sid and
comfort and mharlng to the snemy, not only to the ﬁrmﬂnuut—
ing Gorporation of Jepan, but to the declared unﬂmq.r.nf‘ the
Tnited 3tates, the Imperlial Japanese Govermment.

Now, the Broadcesating Corporation of Japan, the proof
will show, was divided into a number of burenuss It will not
be necessery for me to tell you about A1l those buresus nows
I wlll have a wiineass here -=- we wlll have a witness here =-
that will give you the governmental atructure of the radlo.
Sufficed to eay for present purposes, the evidence in this
cege will derl with the overseas bureau of the Broadecasting
Corporntion of Japanj and the overseas buraau, according to
the proofyof the Broadeasting Corporation of Japan was that
nrenu which waa charged with the reaponaibllity of trans-
mitting broadcasta overaeas to lorelgn lands.

The bureaus were divided into a number of depertments,
among them the Americen continents departments. The Amerdcan
continents dopartment was broken dowmy I believe the evidence
will show, into & number of sections, and one of these sec=
tions, according to the evidence, that scted under the Ameri-
can continents departnent wes what they called the frontlinea
saction of the Broadecssting Corporation of Jepan, whlch was
charged with the responsibllity end entrusted with the dutles
of broadcasting from Eadleo Tokyo propapende to American and
Allled troops, according to the evldence, then fighting for
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the Allled ceuse in the South Pacific Ocean ares.

e e P ———E N AR )

Now, the evidence will show that the defendant worked
on what they called the Zero Hour progrem in connection wlth
her work for the frontlines sectlon of the Broadcasting Cor-
poration ;;li‘ JEDEAN »

They had a blg bullding there in Japan, this Broadcasting
Corporation of Japan, lorse mochanical apparatua, extensive
spparatuss I will go Into thet briefly In & minute. In any
event, the proof wlill show the defendant broadeast for and

Sr e  r r e —— e — P < W] F

vrote serlpts in connectlon with broadeasts beamed to smerlcan
troops in the douth Paciflc Ocean area on the Zoro Hour progran
for the Broadcasting Corporation of Japane

The name; "Zero Hour" according to the evidence, waa con-
cocted or bhatchod up, or davised, I think would be & better
word, to connote Zero Hour as meaning the hour, the Zero Hour,
vihen you lauwnch into battles It &2lso had some indirect refer-
ence to the Zero type of pleno used by the Japanese flyers.
It elsc, according to the evidence, had some indirect refer-
ence to and in commection with some Zero symbol in the Japa=-
nese flag or national emblem, with which T am parsonally not
femiliars ’

That program was firat organized, according to the proof,
and promulgated in cpproximately the Spring of 1043« It wan
then utilized as a l5-minute progreme.’. In 1944 it was on-

T T I i

larged to an hour programe Of courss, the defondent dld not
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o to work broadeasting Tor the Zero Hour until November 1043,
fihan the program took an hour, her part in the Zero Hour

progrom was 15 minutes. 3She introduced musleal reccrdings,

Glen Miller recordings, played "Star Dust," & number of other
tunes that I ean't recall, talked chit-chet to the troops, i
but that's not all. ©She broadcast propagende to them too, and
in o nmoment I will tell you sabout the nature of the remarks
which she made to the troops, mccomiing to the evidence which
the United States will offar for your listening, for your
mnalysis, from the 1lipa of former veterans of World War II,
American soldiers and sallors.

Now, the evidence will show that the purpose of this Zero
Hour program on which the defendant worked wae to ereats
nostalgia smong the /merican and Alllied fighting men in the

Jouth Pacific, to creat homesiclmess among them, to make them

VAT Weary, and to impair the capacity of the United 3tates of

America to wapge war mgalnst Jepean and the Axis allies. It !
|

ing the morale of the American troops.s !

So fer, so goods The evidence will show likewlsze, ladles |

was for the specliflc purpose,; socording to the proof,; of lower

i and gentlemen of the Jury, that these nefarious prﬂpagnndiatiu|
22 |
E-E;

purposas of the Zero Hour program sponscred by the ﬁrnaﬂuu;t- !
Ing Corporation of Japan wera fully, thoroughly, clearly, and é
completely explained to thls defendent, Mrs. D'Aguino, prior é
to the time that she went on the alr, and durlng the ocourse nrl

|
|
|
|
|
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| Imperial Japanose Governmont said over the alr to the troops |

22

her operetiona, and that she monde lmown to the parties who !

instructed her concerning the purposes of this program that |

she waa aware of those purposes, that she fully wnderatood
the program, the purpose of this nrogrem, and the avidence
wlll show that after these purposes snd functions of this
nrogram wore axplained to her she voltﬁtaﬂly went ahead with
hor work and wholcheartedly participated in the propagandis-
tic efforts and nature of the Japanase government propaganda
machlne over Hedio Tokyo.

She was C'irst used, according to the proof’, to attract
the Amerlican soldlers, to meke them listen to the ProSTan .
L suppose in the language of the street you could say that she

was flrat used, es I havo heard scme psople say it, as listenox

balt, for the purpose of attracting attention, so that the

2 ——r—

soldiers would not become bored with the Zero Hour PrrOEram ,
end would then subsequently not cut the progrem off, btut would
subsequently llaten to the program and listen to the subsew
quent propaganda volced by her and other broadcastera wlth her

on thet particular program.

How, we will Introduce evidence here before you ladies
and gentlemen of the Jury which will be to the effect that
among other thinga, this defendant while broadcasting for the

on ocne occaslon, after the Battle of Leyte CGulf in 1944 -
A Japanese broadessteor went on the air on Radio Tokyo in a
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gtudio in the presence of this defendant and told the American
troops thet they had suffered great casualties in the way of
loss of shipa in the Battle of Leyte Gulf in the fall of 1944.
The defendent waa In the broadessting atudio when this neows
broadeaat was made by this news amnmouncer at that time, tell-
ing the fmoricon troops that the Novy had suffered a great
loss of ships at the Battle of Leyte Oulf. 8he wont on the
elr end said, "Now, you boys,"—-in substance -- "Now, you
boya have really loat all your ships. You really are orphans
nows How do you think you will ever get homo nowt"

On other occasionas, the proof wlll show that she told the
troops that thelr aweethearts at home in the United States
were unfaithful to them, that they lacked fidelity, that their

wives end sweethearts were rmning around with 4-FP!s and with

ehipyard workers, £ll of whom had plenty of money in thelr
pockets to give the wives of the soldlers a good time, end
she told the boys over the air to lay down their erma, stop

L s

fighting, that it was futile to go on, that the Japanease wmlﬂ
never give up, that the Japanese had & will to win, and that |
there was no reason in the world why the Ameriecan soldiers
should stay out there and wage a futile battle, risk their
lives, and probably get killed.

A WY P T T TR TR

She would plek out in her broadeasts a spot familiar in
the United States, on some ocomsions, to the citizenry of
Californies I don't know Los ingelesz as well as I know San I
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Francisco, but I have heard & little bit sbout it, been there

& fow timess Ohe would suy, "Now how would ¥ou .li.lm te bo
tonight back In Loa Angeles at the Coconut Grove dencing with

R

your best girlt" .
I don't lmow where that is, I suppose the Ambassadop
Hotel, I don't now ==~ 1t 1s one of those hotels down thers

erd is a place some of you bave heard about and T have heard

about e

D M =1 @ M = EA

"How would you like to be parked in Oriffith Park" --
10 | which i1s & park in Los Angeles =~ "with your girl friend 4in
11 | the car listening to the radiof"

12 She talked mbout the mosquitoes in the iungle, snd on

15 | one occasion when the troops were in the Southwest Paeific

14 | and didn't heve much to eat == I think they were subsisting on
15 | Australlan mutton -- the proof will discloss that the defendant
18 mede caplitnl for thﬂ.JE.pEnﬂnB out of that situstlon by re-

17 | ferring to the nice steaks snd french-fried potatoes that the
18 3 boys would have when they were home, when they were out there
19§ sithout proper nutrients, and on another oceasion, the evie

20 dence will show thet mention was made to the defendant through
21 i official charmels on Radio Tolkyo that a certein contingent of
22 | amerfoan troops on & South Pacific Island were without water,
23 | end she waa msked if she would mllude in her broadeasts to

€% | that incidents She voluntarily agreed snd did sllude to it,
25

end according to the evidence she srid something like thisz on
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that ocoaslon, after the facts which I have just related were
made kmown to her:
"Hollo, Sarge; have you got eny beoer down there?

Forget sbout the beer. Wouldn't you like scme cold

wotort" 5

The evidence wlll show 1t was made lmown to the defendant
that the Amerlcan troops were without water. She went on to
say,” Cold water sure tastes good."

=ho made frequent references, according to the proof,
nbout matters ot home, plemsant little matters that would
make the boys homoeslck. She asked them sbout the corner drug-
store, the Juke box in tho corer astore. "How would you like
to be home,” you would say in her broadeast, "sipping &
chocolate sode ot your favorite corner drugstore, or partaking
of & bananasplitt®

ghe would go on the alr most of the time using the name
or paoudonym of Orphan inn or Orphon Armle. Sometimes she

would say, "This is your favorite playmate mnd enemy, Orphan
Ann "

She would usually call American troops boneheads, bone=
heads of the Pacific, was her favorite terminology epplied
to the imerican fighting men in the Fauiriﬁ. Sometimes ahe

e e, e e e s n L., L

would cmll them suckers.

How, the evlidence on hehalf of the Unlted States, ladies
and gpentlemen, wlll show that thls work was done by hepr
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voluntarily in a position which she sought voluntarily and
sccepted, and a positlion for which she was compensated, a
pogltlon for whilch st lesat on one ccecesion, according to
the proof the Unlted States will Introduce, she sourht and
recelved additional, extra, increased emoluments for her

work; and the evidence will show that she liked this work,

that 1t was & glamorous job to her, according to the proof,

|

that this work intereated her end she was glad to do this
work because of the better pay, the newer faces she would seu,
the Interesting type of the work, snd the excellent contacts
she was able to maoke by virtue of her position as & ghmorous
broadoaster on the Zero Eour progrsm promulgated by the
Broadeasting Corporation of Japan, which in turn was under th e
control of the Imperial Japanese Government.

How, toward the end of the war, 1945, I think it's April
1945, she marries a Philip D'Aguino. She had nuvar' been mar-
rled befores I think he 1a mbout three-guarters Japanase and
ene=guarter Portuguess, I am not sure. In any event, they
are married in Aprdl 1945, which 1s four months before what
wo ordinarlly know aa V-J day. ¥Well, by that time the war

vas going bad for Japans Wien she was firast bpoadcasting, the
war wns golng good for Japane. Tho war wasn't goling so well

s {
with the Imperial Japanese government in the spring of 1945, |

end the avidence will show that she became a little bit ap-
prehensive, her broadensts beceme a little more innocent, they
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beeeme a little more innocuous.

She talked to her husband shout 1t after they were
married, the evidence will show, and he said in response to
& question put him by her as to what would happen to hor in
the event the United States wma victordous, would any troa-
gon charge be brought apeinast her end pressed by the United
States govermment, he says, "Well, quit now." '

Well, she said, "You can't just quit.”

Now, ;rﬁu probably wonder what all this apparatus here was
fore I will explain that vory briefly to you, and my explana-
tion to you will merely be what the evidence of the United
States wlill shows. The evidence wlll show that these Zero Hour
programa in which the defendant partlioipated wore beamed
by the Droadeasting Corporation of Jeapan to American troops
and Alllad troops in the Southwast Pacifle or South Pagific
Ocean arems They were not intended to be beamed to the ‘:‘In.it&ril
States cltigzenpry fs such In the Unlted States of America on
the fmerican continent.

I think only about ten of her progrems, mocording to the
proof, wera eaver sctually recorded by the Japanese. That is

to say, har voles went out over the microphone sg o live -

volceae dhe didn't have a recording mede snd the recording was ;
not played over the air. &he spoke right into the microphone 's

imow 1f ten recordings of her volce were made. Some seripts
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is dlscomected. All you use is the volumm, snd you ladies

=8

wore written by hers ALl those recordinge, and I sm adviassd
there are not more than ten, and all her scripts wers destroyed
on the order of her superior officials working for the Imperial
Japanese government, excepting & few relatively innocous and

innocent ones which she kept out for her own purposes snd 1::1:5!1-

showed to Americen conquering troops who entered Tokyo after
the terminetion of hostilities.

How, Japan 1la about ten thousend miles from San !-"rn.rmiscﬂL
Ho recordings made in the Orient of her broadcasts are avail- I
ables Mny made, and there were only a few, were destroyad by
orders of her superlora working for the Broadcasting Compenya
The acripts were deatroved.

Some of her broadeasts were monitored in the United
States by the Federal Commmnications Commission. We have n

fow of those records here, about fours. They are not very

audible for two remsons: One, the broadecasts were never
beamod to the Unlted Statesy two, Japan is ten thousand miles
away from Portland, Oregon, whore these records weore mr:mitu:-ud.f‘
In any event, the expert testimony will he that these records
are not clearly audlble without the use of earphones, end we
have a radio engineer who will testify end explein this ﬂl.p-
paratus. If allowed, ho will explain it to you, ladies and ;

gentlemen, and to the Court. You don't have to use the

switeh i1f you are allowed to hear theses records. The awitch
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- and gentlemen in the hack seats will rind it behind youa.

lazakl , N-g=r-g-k=-1i, and Eawachi, K-p-w-a-o-h-1i, end were '

2o |

G oma mm o mrww orrm o= x

If they are subsequently utllized they will bs thoroughly
explained to you by an cxpert later. I don't ¥mow very much
about radio, c-nl:.*_ what they teach me; so you den't have to use
thet awliteh, anly the volume controle. That is the reason for

the apparatus here, and this loudspeaker and reproducing :
squipment «
We have some radioc englneers from Japan whe are familiar
with the setup from the mechanical end aclentiflec and -anglnmr-;-
ing stendpoint of Radio Tokyoe These men I think are pretty
food englineera, electrleal radio englneera. Some if .not all !
are college trained. Some of them work for the radic nows |
They will briefly explein to you the mechanical and sclentific
setup of Radio Tokyo na 1t existed during the poried of time
that the defendant worked there, as alleged in the indictment.

They will show plotures of the broadesating studios snd broad-

casting equipment of the Erosdeasting Corporation of Japan
building in Tokyo as it wms during the poriod of time that the

defendant worked there.
The broadeasts were trensmitted through & ceble from
Tokye to the trensmitter stations at Yamata, Y-o-me-a-t-g,

actually transmitted to the troops from these three t¥ans-
mitting stations at Yemata, Nazekl, and Kawachli. They had

huge radio towers theore, and with the sid of directional -]
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antenna directly besmed the broademsts of the Zero Hour to
the Jjmericin t roopa and their allles in the South Pacific
during the porlod In questlion.

The evidence wlill show that the programs were properly,
accurately, faithfully, and from a sclentific standpoint
properly sent out through the ceble from the station to the
transmitter statlons and besmed to the Americen t-runpﬂl, with
all propor and due regerd to scientific and mechanicel 5
principles of radic engineering.

Now, the evidence will show that the Zero Hour progranm
was utllized by the Imperiel Japanese Government, ladles and
gentlemen, as an ingtmmmtnlity of paychologlical warfare,for
the distinct purpose of impeding the cmpacity of the United
Stetes to wage war, end for the purpoase of lowering the morale
of the Amariesn troops.

The evidence will show that the defendant on trisl, kre.

DiAquino, was distinotly and clearly told end advised that thi%
Zoro Hour progrem on wnlch she partlcipated vms to be used zmﬂ
was Intended and devised te be used, snd that her work was .
part of the same and waa Intended toe be used as &n element 1:1,;
es an Intepral pert,of, the Imporisl Japanese Government's ;|
propram of paycholopleal nn:';rnra against the Unit ed States, !

end that this defendont on trisl, accerding to the proof, !

fully undorstood that fact.

[
1
!
L

The evidence wlll show that the defend s nt was apprehended

[ |
]
¥
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in the latter part of Auguat 1948 in Tokyo, by tha Department
of the Army, at the request end behest of the United States
Department of Justice, and in the first part of September, in
custody of the Army, In protective custody at least, she was
transported to the United States on the Army Transport
UENERAL He Fo HODOES. The evidence will show, if my memory
serves me accurately, that the H. F. HODGES left Yokohama
with the defendant on board, and military male snd WAC femals |
protective enlisted and offlcer personnel custody on three
deptember, 1948, and that she arrived &t the Port of San
Francisco, which is in the Northern Federal Judicial Diatrict
of Galifornia, on September £5, 1848. Throughout this voyage,
the proof will show, the vessel on which she was tranaported

from the Ordient to the United States stopped at no American

pﬂrta; %awuii, Algska, or otherwise. The only ports on this |
voyage on which the defendant was transported to the United E
States at whlch the transport stopped were Nehe, N-a-hig !
Okinawa, O=k=i-n-g=-w-ay Jingen, Jelenege-s-n, Kores. : i
That ovidence la material only in attempting substantin- :[
tion and proof of the partioulsr allegetlion in the indictment ;
that I have heretofors spfken to you ladles end pentlemen ahéu%
concorndng venue, wherein 1t is alleged in the Iindictment thnt?
the Northern Federal Judiclal District of Celifornie was the
district Into which, In the words of the congressional enact=

ment, the defendant was flrst broughta : |
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How I am going to conclude my opening statement, ladies
end gentlemen of the Jury, end I now state to you that thae
United States of Americe believes that after you have cone
aildered all of the a?idanc; introduced on behalf of both

parties herein, the goverrmant and the defondant, the United i
States believes that you wlll come to no other conclusion Lhem‘
that the material allegations, the materlal averments of this
indletment in issue before you, have been proven to your sgate
isfaction bayond a reasonable doubt.

MR« TAMEA: If the Court plemse, may the defense resepve
its opening statement at this timae?

THE COURT: Very wolle It is noar twelve o'clock. The
Jurors may be execused until two olclock this af'ternoons. Keep
in mind the admenition of the Court heretofore glven yous. low
the most convenlent way to atep out is through this door, and
tako the back slley. It will ha more convenieont. You mey be
excused until two o'elock. We will tale & recoss wntil two
o'elock.

(Thereupon at 11:50 AJi. an adjournment was taken until
2:00 o'clock Ps Ma)

EiEE i e———
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Motion to acquit made at end of trial by George Olshausen,

member of the defense team, in criminal case 31712,
"U.S. v. Iva Ikuko Toguri D'Aquino"
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safeguard, Previously we had only made an objection. Now we

2 make 2 motion to dlemiss.

3 THE COURT: The motion to dismlss will be denled.

& MR. COLLINS: Page 5771 of the reporter's transcript of .
5 the proceedings had on September 16, 1949, at line 5, I pru]:nud'd-
8 ed & question to Mr, Tillman as to when he had first seen

i Major Tsunelshi in Japan:

8 "a, When did you first interview him? ’
9 "MR., DeWOLFE: I object to that as not proper cross examing-
10 tion.

11 "MR. COLLINS: It 1s crose examination with reference to

12 thies very document which mentions the man's name, ,
13 "THE COURT: If there ls any questlon about 1%, I wWill |
14 allow 1t.

15 A, I interviewed him*t April 1945 in Tokyo and again in
13 San Francisco some time after September 25th, 1948."

1% It iz obvious the date 18 not 1945. The date that should have
18 been given by Mr. Tillman was 1945, and it is obviously an
19 error, and we ask that that particular date be amended to show

20 1946, _ 5
21 THE COURT: By consent? _ ;
22 MR. COLLINS: Yes. "I interviewed him in April 1946."

23 THE COURT: By consent of both sldes?

24 MR. DeWOLFE: Yes.

25 MR. OLSHAUSEN: We rest. At this time the defendant renews

Eppati G, Gacssd f
ERICUTIVE EEFORTER

Eowanb W, LEHHER I
JeAERIE ], SEEENEY
CLAnsxcE F. WieHT
Tren J. Secerny, Jo )
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1 the motion to acqult made at the closes of the prosecutlon's

€A

|
= evidence under Rule 29(B) on all the grounds that were set fnrth
at the close of the prosecution’s evidence, and on the addi- f

tional ground that the evidence of the imprisonment in Japan,

which is now before the cout, shows that the matter was eithers
i res judicata or that the defendant haﬂ,fg::?ed a apeedy trial. |
If the imprisonment and the release in Japan constituted a

charge and a declsion on any kind of a charge, the matter i=s ;

res Judicata, or ghe has been once in Jeopardy. If it i1a not %

v ® a1 @ O

10 decislon, then the imprisonment, particularly coupled with th&:

-

11 | eyidence thet she was held incommunicado part of the time and

12 | was held incommmicado execept for the right to see her husband |
13 | the rest of the time, that that denied her the right of a |
14 Y ppeedy trial, particularly when 1t is covered with the addi- ;
15 f tional testimony that there has been a loss of evidence uigng;

18 | the point being this, that by imprisoning her without f£iling

TR T

17 | sharges and keeplng her incommunicado first entirely, and senan#-
18 tly from everybody except her husband, the prosecution, that 1!J
13 the government by ite own acts, Interfered with the darendantlﬁ
=0 opportunity to gather evidence or praserve avidence for her
21 defensa, and as I say, the government's own evidence shows

22 § some of the scoripts have become lost.

23 THE COURT: The defenme of what? |
24 MR. OLSHAUSEN: The defense of the pending charge.
<0 THE COURT: The pending charge? 1Is there a charge pending?

KEMETH . GAGAN : |

ERCTTIVE REROETIE |

Enwaxn W, LriER |
JosrrH ), SWERHEY ; i
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|
|

i

|

MR, OLSHAUSEN: If you assumée she was not charged, she was |
arrested for something and she was held arrested. ‘
THE COURT': How could she prepare & defenaef !

MR, OLSHAUSEN: If she were free, she would have been able |

to gather evidence for a future charge which they mlght bring
against her, and as fey have actually brought. In other uﬂrdsﬁ

by lmprisoning her they say it is without a charge and there- |
fore not res judicata, but they say they can imprison her for |
a year and have no legal conseguences arise from 1t. The pﬂiné
15 elther that there was already a charge, in which case, as Ii
say, 1t was res Judlcata, or it was not a charge, in which uaﬂﬁ
it interferes with her opportunity to gather evidence for any i
charge that they may bring in the future. They can not hold E
ler a year incommunlcado, elther in part or in whole,for a raarﬁ
and not have any legal consequences flow from it. |

MR. DeWOLFE: Of course, I want that at this Juncture to i
say this: I won't go into the evidence of both parties which |
motivates the government at thils time to say 1t 1s a factual '%
gqueation for the jury. We argued that at considerable length i
one Saturday and the government contended at that time that itl
had made out & prima facle case., HNow, any wealkness that exist-
ed in the government's case at that time has been supplanted, |
or the government's case has beeh made stronger as & matter of !
law as to be sufficlent at this juncture to withstand a motion E

for an instructed verdict, in that the defendant has admitted

QOFFICIAL REPORTERS
Linmined Sterea Diaceicy Courg
Morchern Disfeict of Crliformts




5924

that thase were her recordings. She has admitted that this
was her seript. She has sdmitted certain of her sctivities.

Certain defense witnesses have testified on cross ﬂmﬁminitinn!

W 4 B

aa to certain broadoasts that the defendant made and as to thai

[ ]

context of them, and all of thoBe witnesszes' testimony make 1t§
more doubly certain that now it is not a guestion for the Cﬂurti
but a factual question for the Jury. True, the defendant |
denied making these broadcasts, but her own witnesses say she

w o m =¥ &

did, witnesses for whom she personally vouches as a matter of ;
10 | law, and so 1t is a fact guestion for the jury. :
11 The plea of double jeopardy, the special plea in bar, or

12 | whatever you may call 1t here, has been before the Court hufﬂrJ
13 Inwhat they call thelr special defsnses, It 1s a very novel E
14 | contention. They are without any legal authority to sustain ;
15 | that position, and a plea of autrefole to convict or a&quit uri
18 | a plea in bar such as this, inorder to be in any wise success- i
17 | ful, must show that there was a prior proceeding pending, a

18 i charge against the defendant by the same party, that is, the
15 | United States of America, and that there waes a disposition of
20 f that proceeding before or againet the defendant, anﬁja plea in

2L | bar or a plea of double jeopardy or autrefois to acquit or
22 | conviet, the burden is not upon the United States but upon the

23 | movant, the defendant, and there 18 no evidence, not a scin-

2¢ | tilla of evidence, to any prior proceedings against this defanﬂ}

|
25 | ant. The record 13 totally devold of any evidence whatsoever

Ervdanii 5. Gatasr
EXDEAITEVE ASFCATIE
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a8 to her having been placed previously in jeopardy from a
legal standpoint or as to any other legal proceedings ever
having been pending which constitute & bar to the prosecuion
of this case.

The motlon should be denied.

THE COURT: OSubmitted? The motlon will be denied. Both
sides submit thelr case?

MR, DeWOLFE: The United States resta,

MR. COLLINS: The dfendant has rested already.

THE COURT: In the absence of the jury, 1f you can agree

upen time for argument, you may do so, 1f you wish. What time

do you wish for the defensec, Mr. Collina?
MR. COLLINS: That would largely depend pon the time de-

manded by the prosecutlon. We uhderstood Mr, DeWolfe was going

to request some six hours of time for argument. It is our

opinion that aix hours would be a day and & halfl, two hours in

the morning and two hourse in the afternoon., It seems to me
that is somewhat prolonged.
THE COURT: I am interested in the time you wish,

MR. COLLINS: We wish only that period of time that will .

be allotted to the government. We have not discussed that
among ourselves.

THE COORT: I do not want to select a time.

MR. COLLINS: May I ask Mr..DEHulrs this guestion: Am I
correct, Mr. DeWoclfe, that you wanted six hours of argument
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CUTHERN DIVISICN OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT CCURT |
|

FOR THE NORTEERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORN |

UNITED STATES (F AIGRICA,

Plaintife,
o. 31712~
IVA TRUKWTOGURY DVAG UIhﬂ,

IIJ"“'EI ll}
Dafendant,

N S

‘_—j
S

In accordance with the instruction already given by

SPECIAL FINDINGS BY THE JUERY |

;

the Court, the jury makes the following findings:
Le
Did the jury find overt aect 1., as it is lald in_
the indlciment, a treasonable act committed by the
defendant Dliguino with an intent to betray the

United States?  (Answer, in writing, yes or no).

TREAS CH {Titijf 18 U.5.C.

o= £

L I A e e L




Il.
Did the jury find overt act 2., asz it 1z laid in
the indiectment, a treascnable aet committed by the
defendant D'Aguing with an Intent to betray the

United States? (Answer, in writing, yes or no).

T m wT WT = T Ew Ew = cEed e

IIT.
Did the jury find overt aect 3., as it is laid in
the inﬁi¢tnent, a treasonable act committed by the
defendant D'Aquino with an intent to betray the

United States? (Answer, in writing, yes or nojd.

IV,
Did the jury find overt act 4., as It 1s laid in
the indictment, a treasonable act commitfed by the
defendant D'Aquino with an intent to betrayr the

United States? (Answer, in writing, yes or no).

V.
Did the jury find overt act 5., as 1t is laid in
the indictment, a treasonable act committed by the
dafendant D'Aguine with an intent to betray the

United States? (Answer, in writing, yes or nol.

S -



VI.
Did the jury find overt zet Ef, ag it is laid in
the indietment, a ftreascnable aet commiftted by the
defendant DiAquine with an intent te betray the

United States? (Answer, in wrifing, yes or nod.

VIL. |
Did the Jury find overt act 7., as it is= laid in
the indictment, a treasonable act committed by the
defondant D'Aguine with an intent to betray the

United States? (Answer, in writing, yes or no).

VIII.
Did the jury find overt aect 8., as it 1s laid in

the indietment, a treasonable sct committed by the
defendant D'Aquine with an intent to betray the
United States? (dnswer, in writing, yes or no).
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Judgment and commitment in criminal case 31712, "U.S. v.
Iva Ikuko Toguri D'Aquino"



Judgment and Commitment Cr. Form Mo. 20a

Aistrict Court'of’ :t iriten States

FOR
M""{""“l
HORTHERN I“STEE;_EEJJ_‘_LLi "I A E JLB
u.:r'...‘ u-'rI_' - ;.lﬂ . DI‘ITIEIDH e Y N Ry
URRS __NOV. 30 1949
OGT 1 119449
United States of America C. W.) CALBREATH, CLERK U. 8. Marshal's Office

San Francisco, Calif.
31?12 E_ = rancisco E 1
IVA IKUKO TUGURI DYAQUINO oo Poe 57

———— ,&‘?ﬁf{_ﬁ_}f_- S —=

v, No,

On this Gth day of COTORER » 19 Lgame the attorney for the govern-
i 1
ment and the defendant appeared in person and wlth counsols

mE e
Do LA
B =t

] g
wir I. g % L]

It Is ApJupGED that the defendant has been conv n:fed ) pon Iﬁﬂ pilaﬂ{-hclf 3 Flh '

i | ',"% l. \

guilty and a

_Ll,l“ pETeR ﬂﬁ:l."' oy
1..:L JL:l'E.nr uﬂﬂuﬁﬂé; i)

verdict of guilty of the offense  of R yte ‘:ﬂi"‘l"f_{_"-'ffﬁ‘:]_ .

WEOLUEh (GEUELY]" MIfp ¥ cr;.;mfsq cobk O (PG MIppro qnqBuens € mmnwmr::r

L u_]-q“:._.L-JJ" MEEL A] TLErO7 * [P6 IUREIFOLI0U (eRIBUTieq i‘:"' [pe
e BT as charged * in the Indictment

and MEEETha¥5HE Hdited thedefondart weHdthérshe has adythinig’ t6 Say’ whyjudgment should: not be’

pronounced, and no sufficient cause to the contrary being shown or appearmg' to the Court,
DELendunf,d ehhey] qogerIIeq o

IT Is ADJUDGED that the defendant iz guilty as charged and convicted.
DELGIFUL Gl6CLEG" Oon 0P -§0 COUNUGICE BELAICE 0L PG 6L GULE"

It Is ADJUDGED that the defendant is hereby ecommitted to the custody of the Attorney General or
his aURGHEEHF bfresittdtive for imprisonment for a period of ¢ Ta (10) YBARS
andppiotaiiosrctoriberlnited States of America in the oun of Tl THOUSAD LDOLLARS
{-@lﬂ.ﬂlﬂtm L

DEISUgUIL Q6JIAGLEY On OGgopalL -E".I:I'l T [o =1 :-.IF:TETQ':D .I"__S.":'u.i_'.'f'_ 1977

1 P9AS GXECHLE] (P6 MIPPID INqRITEDE G1q COWIIIFIUIGIE ¥8 TO[JOME

BEELIOEHX

I AEAPEFAT Y

IT 1= ORDERED that the Clerk deliver a certified copy of this judgment and commitment to the United
States Ma:::’{mg;r other qualified officer and that the copy serve as the commitment of the defendant. -

Tom De Wolfe IEGHREL J RucHE

Speclal Adste Go the U. Se "Uinited States Diatrict Judge.
Attorney General
The Court recommends commitment to: ®
Filed and entered this &6th day of J.PaiWelsh

'\.:'c-trﬂhur_‘ l?‘l'l‘?’ ":'- LN ] U;'J.m-lr—l -I:il’ Glﬂrk ELENLEN ERRLALERERESENL ul:ulululllﬁlcl;fli:.lﬁl;q r.lI-II-I-IH-‘I-I--JI--nlJ:LlaialiE};:;.lli.‘;f ;

A True Cod:} ﬁ”tﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁh’rﬁ v of ... EEFPE%I" 1?}... Ve

Signed B 4
(GioRel) Clerk = /
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I have executed the within Judgment and Commitment as follows:

to

Dﬂendant delivered on gctober 6th, 1949
.r B &t *-1-«
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Attorney General, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and Cnnumtment
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Letter from Frank J. Hennessy, U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District of California, to Harry M. Kimball,

Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation,
San Francisco



Sda¥ Py

m.ﬂ. 1948,

Harry M. Einball, Eaq.,
al Agont in Charge,
Buresa of Investipgntion,
Fodarsl Office Pailding,
San Frenoclseo, California.

¥y dear lMr. Ximball:
/y Be: United Stetes v Iwa Topurd D'Aquino

Reference 1o made to the sbove entitled tresson prosecution
prosently pending in this jurisdiction.

The Depertment of Justice st Weshington has informed me that
Specinl Agent Tillman of the Los Angeles office of the Buresu is shortly to
procesd to the Orient to investigate certain matters herein. Your office ia
the of fice of n in this onse. In this letter I will stienpt to cutline the
!!I.llﬂm ghould delve into when he proceeds to-the Ordent.

.i'-l ch should be condneted in the Orlent in sn mdeavor to
locate any scripta of mubject's radio troadongts end eny avallable evidance by
moens of which sald soripts con be identified for use in court. A slndlsr senrch

i

should be made for any recordings of defendent's broadcasts which sre avellable
in the Orient, m-:l. mmmnimumh:m:u triel purposes. To
prove tressonable intent it would be beneficiel for us to obtain, if posaible,

appropriate evidence from sy third perty as to the naturs ond context of
defendant's broadcante.

It iz deairalle to locate some Japsnese individual who s in
e position to testify that the Broadcasting Corporntiom of Jopan was under govern-
mentel control snd wes supervised and gontrolled by the Jepanese Army and the
Imperisl Jopenoosa Covernment. Information in desired sa to the chein of command
in connection with digseminetion of prepagsnda by the Jopanesse government over the
radio. It is Dbelieved that directives with reference to the dissemination of .
propagandintic materiel over the radloe first come from the Japanese Army to an
individual nsmed Seweda in Hadio Tokyo, snd then down fron Sevada to one George
Hplkamoto snd his mibordinates ddrect to the defendant.

It 1s desirsble to have a Jepetiese Tadlo, electiricnl, sndfor
mechenical engineer who is in a position to tentify ne to the scientific and
mechenical met-=up of BEadio Tokyo. The type of pereon to be locnted should be
able %o tentify as to the mommer in vhich defendant's broadcasts were beamed froa
Tolgro 4o troops in the Southwest Pecific, the nature end extent of the power used,
the sccurecy of the equipment used, the exsct menner in which the propagsnda was



 Horry W. Kisbell, Baq. Page §2 December 2, 1948,

beamed from a eclentific stendpaint, the naturs snd description of the trensmitting
apparatus rnd similer snd kindred matters.

dny ond sll documents, records end pepers which esn in eny wey
hlhklﬁwh:ﬁ:lduphmmmt:huﬂqmmmuﬂtﬂﬂml
intent should 1ikewlse be chtained. If the originele of seid documents ere svall-
able, thay would best serve the purposes of the government. If coples only ave
obtainable md the ssme sre Japsness governmantsl records, thay should be certified
in sccordsnce with the manner hereinaftor described snd set forth. The records
at Donel Hows Agency whoere defendent wns employed, including their personnel
records, mnd the records at Radio Tolgyo, including their personnel records, should
hiﬂhhlmﬂmﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂthtﬂﬂhn‘btuﬂudm-dm-tnm

In the fall of 1545, mn ageat or agents fron the Counter-Intslligence
Corps, United States Army, obiained sllegedly from defendesnt's Imshend certain
coples of rallo soripts of defendsnt's brosdcasts. The particulsr msnner in which
sald documents were obteined snd the nsme of the party or parties cbtaining them

in mestion were voluntarily turned over to the Counter-Intelligence Corps ngent

or sgents in question. The entherity for & search of defendant's home, if sny,

by mesns of which sald scripts were locsted sndfor selzed ghould be looked into,

If such n search woe mads, all aveileble participanta therein ghould be located pmd
interviewed, whather in the Oriest or in the United Stotes. '

The defendsnt, through her locsl counsel, now contendn that che
hae previcusly been tried by some tritunsl in the Orient, military or otherwine,
znd that che presemtly 1s in double Jeopardy, oince she has been once tried for the

It would be valusbla for this office to have information concerning the dotos of
her imprisonment, the suthority thersafor, snd whether sny charges of pny kind were
ever filed, or whether any trial was ever conducted agsinet defendsnt by officiale
of the Office of Mlitrry Govarnment of the United States, or sny Japeness courts,-
on a charge of freason, or sny similar offense whatsoever.

In 1942 defendant worked at the Domel Agency in Japan. Later en
she weo employed part time at the Danish Legation. Ihe manager, officers snd fellow
w-utmmtnnnﬂammuhmwmnu.uuhm
poasible prospective evidence concerning trensonous end 4isloyal uttercnces which
ughlw-rhnmmhrddmauluhnrpﬂuudufmmtn
bafore mentioned, together with sny evidenge berring on the chnrges ineluded in
the indlctzent presently pending ageinat defendmnt in the United States Court for
this dlstrict. A similer fnterview with officisls of and employees at the Denieh
Lagntion might provide some evidence that would ultinataly prove dstinetly
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beneficinl to the interests of the United States at the trinl of this case on
its sSorits.

Subject in 1942, shortly after her mrrivel in Jepan, left the home
of her uncle and mnt snd bonrded cut. Her landledies and lendlords ot her
dfferent places of residence chould bde located and interviewed with reference to
my expressions of treasoncus intent voleced by defendsnt, and should be likewise
interviewed generslly pertaining to defendsant's netivities, what she talked about,
#ad how she gmerslly conducted herself, with reference specifically to the
allegations of treasonous broadeasting 1esid ageinst her in the indictment by the
grand juroras for this district.

In the spriag of 1942, defendant spplied at the Swiss Consulate
in Telgre for repatriation to the United States, nnd leter on filed » document
withdrawing her spplication for repatriation. The Swiss Conml at Tokyo and hie
mibordinates sheuld be closely interrognted with reference to any oral stetements
made by defendent at the time of the coourrence of sald events, mnd certified
photostatic coples of the spprepriste documents pertoining to this matter shemld
be obtained by Agent Tillmen., The documents if certified should be certified and
mthentioated in mcoordsnce with the applicsble provielons of TFitle 28 U.5.C.
Heviged Sec. 1741, which providesas followal

"4 copy of any forsign document of reocord or on
file in a poblic office of n foreipgn country or politienl
subdiviaion thereof, certified by the lowful custodisn
thereof, shall be pdmimeible in evidence when mithentiented
by a certificate of n conmler afficer of the United States
residemt in mich forelpgn country, under the seal of his
effice, that tha ecopy has boen certified by the lawfal
custodism. ®

dgont Tillman will be furnished with appropriste forme of attestation end certifi-
catlon for use in commaction with documents thought to be at the Swiss Consmlate
snd other records, smd asld forms will not be included in this report. Sald
forna of sttestation and certification in complisnce with Title 28 U.5.C. Reviged
Bpg. 1741 will be prepared by this offiece.

In 1942 defendsnt nttended n Japanerse lenmnge school. Officinles
and employees of the ssme should be contscted with the view of obtalning informstion
aa to utterances ond expressions emanating from defendsnt, snd the records of the
spme should be scrutinized with the view of obieining sny pertinent documents that
may besr upon the alleged treasoncus intent herbored by defendant. If eny mald
docunents are loeated in ssid lengasge school, coples of the asme should be
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obfained end properly certified in mesordsnce with the method hereinbefore

sot forth relating to the cortificstion of records on hend in the Swles
Consulste st Tolgyo. It is possible that sny pertinent records on hand in

the Japsnese lenguage school will be willingly parted with by the officisls
thereof. If s0, the original records, of course, if signed by defendant,
would be much more beneficisl ond useful to us than eertified coples of the
send.  The sme theory obtains to sny and all records which may have been
siged by defendant. It is mch more desirsble for the government to be in
possession of the originnle of sald records, rather than certified coples thoreaf.
If the government obtsins possession of eny original pertinent documente signed
bty the defendmnt. the necessity of bringing over sdditions]l Orientsls for the
parpose of identifylng the seme, snd the technicsl necsseity of complying with
certain technical rulve of evidence and the eppropriste certificatisn rules
h-:t;:hh-mm--w:mﬂmuuunmﬂmm.mmmmtu
cbrinted.

Officiale of the Brosdossting Corporstion of Jepan snd of flcers
connocted with the Overseas Brosdcasting Committes of the Japsnese Army Ganeral
S4nff should be contected to show the chain of commsnd in comnection with the
desemdnation of propagenda, and the sctunl trensmittsl of militsry directives
or policy directives concerning the seme right down to the defendont personslly,
20 a3 %o hook her up with the ssme, and render them ndmissible befors the trisl
equrt and petit Jury at the trlel on the merits herein. Sald officisls md
officera should likewise be interviewed in addition to thelr sppropriste muibe
ordinates end sppropriaste Hodio Tokyo personnel, with reférence to the sources,
aims énd parposes of the materisl and propegsndn that wes brosdesst to the
United States by defendent during the period plesded snd mentioned by the grand
Jurors in the indictment presently pending in this judleisl district. dn
effort chould be made to develop evidence to the effect that 1f the ectusl con-
tente of defendsnt's brosdessts were immocucus, that the yropagendisiic purpone
of the came as being of emtertainment wvelue for the purpose of introdueing subse-
w;immmmmmmmwn-mmmnmmmw

defendent .

A former offielol of the Japansse radls should be located who will
be avalleble =t the sppropriste time to testify concerning the use mede by the
imperial Japsnese Government at the time in question of radis broadcnst propageada
es =0 elememt snd instrument of paycholegieal warfare.

An examination of the family census records of defendsnt’s family,
ti.‘-l. the hm’. fllﬂ.r. her unole ond sint's fﬂllrr 1--1|- tha H.-ttm fﬂlbl nEd
her mabend's family, 1i0., the D'Aquine femily, should be mads for sppropriste
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information and documentary evidence concorning the citisenshiy of defendsnt
end her clainm that her marrisge to Felipe J. D'Aqmuino on 19 Aprll, 1945, at
Tolgro, expatristed her mmd constituted a rensuncement of her status as en
dmericsn citizen,

Zxmaination should be made of the Tolkyo Folice records to dstermine
whether or not defendsnt registered ns sn Americsn citizen during the period of
her residence in Tolgyo during the late wer. A record of defendant's merriape,
gﬂ. to Felipe D'Aquino at Sofin Chapel, Tolgyo, on 19 April, 1945, should be

toined. '

Zhe records of the Portugiese Consulate at Tolkys should be
serutiniged, if possible, with the view of determining whet tho seme disclose
with reference to Felipe D'Amino's citizenship, defendent's citizenship, and
matters incldent thereto. ¥e heve Deen informslly advised that nt cne time
~ ¥he Portugnese Congul st Tokyo advised defendont that she retsined her Americen
nationality sibsequent to her marrisge to Felipe D'Aquino. The details of gaid
conversation and eny and all conversations had by defendsnt with the Portugiese
Conmil, or sny of hin sibordinates, nt Tolyo during her residence thers should
be developed. dny pertinent official records obtained from the Consul fGenersl
of Fortagel at Telgyo should be certified in mccordsnce with the applicable
vislons of Title 28 V.5.C, Hevised Sec. 1741.

: Spocinl Agent Tillmen should make an effort to develop the
stsnce of any end sll orsl conversations had by defendsnt with the Americsn Conmal
st Toicyo when the /meriesn Consulate was open there, snd should obtein from that
afficisl the criginel or photontatic certified coples of any documents pertinent
to defendent's attespted repatriation to this country, and her finel sbsndonment
of same. Joy certified coples of documents obtained from the Amerlcan Conmulate
at Tolcyo should be certified in acoordsnce with the applicable provieions of
Title 28 U.5.0. Revised Sec. 1740, which provides ns followsd

“Coples of all officlsl documents ond pepers
in the office of eny conmul or viee consil of the United
Stotes, nnd of nll official entries in the books or recods
of any such office, mithentiested Yy the conml o vice
conmal, shall be admiseidle squally with the eriginsle.®

Agent Tillmen has Been or will be furnished with sn appropriste
form of attestation snd gertification prepared by this office, for his wse in
obtaining & proper certifieste on coples of documents to ba obtained from the
dzericon Conmilate Gensral at Tokyo.

our

Certain Counter-Intelligence Corps reports of the Army 4n
pesstsnion mad a defenne motion recently interposed by counsel for the defendant
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mentionsd cortalin radio scrips nllegedly taken by Colonmsl Hobert Hardy, Counter-
Intelligence Corps, United Stntes Army, from defendsnt sndfor her lushend at

- Yokohsmn on October 17, 1945, Ewery effort should be made o locate the

radio soeripts of dafendant's broadcaste Just menticnad.

In motions for discovery snd inspection end for a Bil1l of
particulers interposed by counsel for the defense in the orimins]l proceedings
now pending here, mentien is made of certsin so s of dofendant’s redio broad-
cagts obioined by one Lient. Eadason on or chont bar 1, 1045. Bald defense
motions, which sre supportsd by sn affidavit, mention that sald soriptes sy have
been gbtained by ome Lieut. Vanghn Paul at o time a coartain sound track film
was made during October, 1945, after the war, deploting defendsnt's setivities
a8 n radio broadosster for Jepen during the late war.

In cooperstion with officera of the Depariment of the Amy, it 0
sugeested that it would be well for Specinl Agent Tillman to make o search of the
records, reports, documents and files of the Counter-Intelligence Corps. partica-
darly at Yolohsms and Togyo, in sn éndesvor to locate coples of scripts md record=
ings of defendmnt's radlo troadcasts. If sny additionsl wcripts of dafendmt's
btroadosete are locsted in the Orient, every effort should be made to identify them
bty some individuel or party ms having been written or volced by defendsnt, so that
the same will be adnmiesible in evidence st the trisl on the merits.

Cortein stetements during 1945 snd 1946 werse cbiained from defendsnt
by officers and enlisted men end Specisl Agmts of the Counter-Intelligence Corpa,
United Etoten Army. During some of those times, defendsnt wns in cuntody, end at
othor tines she was not in custody. ALl pertinent informstion with reference to
the circumstences under which seld statements woere obtained, together with ths
identity of the parties obtoining the seme, should be developed, snd it shonld
ldkewlss be ascertalned whether or not ooy seripte vol
by dafendmt owar the radlo were exhibited to her or i
her o be her prodict in any msnner at euch times. If such on investigetionsl
lead becones frultful, I% should be pocertained ons

4
1
8
1
4
;

Jaendments to the Constitution of tho United States. To combat much & motiom,
it will be necessary for the Depertment of Justice to hawve evellshle either in
effidevit forn or by wey of personal testimony. the evidence of the witnosses who



Harry M. Kimboll, Req. Page 7 Decenber 2, 1048.

participated in the obtainment of ssdd documents by search and selwure, end
the evidence concerning the surrounding fects end circumstences incldent
therato. In commection therewith, it would be inwvaluable if Speclsl Agent
T411msn were able to locate sn attorney in SCAP of field grade who wns
femiliar with the lew, procedure nnd practice concerning the rules of arrest,
gearch and seirure, snd who wes fomilinr generally with the legsl features,
practices and principles of military lew governing the rights of the Undted
States ns o oocupying belligerent over Japanese occupled territory in the
f8ll of 1945. An ermy attorney of such caliber wes loceted and utilized to
groat advantege ms #n expert witness for and on behalf of the United States
on identical questions of military law involving sesrch, selmure, arrest and
the law of militery government in occupled territory in s treason prosscutison
recently mocessfully concluded in the United States District Court for the
Metrict of Messaclusetts. (United States v. Mobert H. Rest.)

Jn effort shauld be made to determine whether the legal section
of SCAP has sny information or documents in connection with the subject matier
ofthis roquest for investigntion in mistance that e not in the possesslon of
the Counter-Intelligence Corps, Depertment of the Army. It shenld be determined
whether the Cpiminal Investigstion Divieion, Provost Marshal Genersl's Office,
Departmmt of the Army, in the Orient has any infermation or documents on file
goncernlng the subject matter and information contnined generslly in thias
requost for investigation, mnd more particulerly shether the Criminsl Investli=
gation Divipion, Provest Marshal Genersl's Office, hee mny information bearing
on the search snd pedsmure prodlems hereinbefore mentloned, elther evidentlery
or otherwise, or the rasulte of ssid sesrch sndfor seimure. if suy.

It is suggested that 1t would be well for Specisl Agent Tillman
to consider an interview with the following officliels snd employees of thoe
Brosdensting Corperation of Japen, with the wiew of obisining information on
defendsnt, ond nlse with the idea of obtaining pertinent evidence and information
with regard to the eperation of Redio Tokyo insofer as msterisl and pertinent
to the setivities of defendsnt nw n brondoester. a5 complained of by the grand
Sorors in the indictment hereini

H. Shimomura Yoshio Mato
Inom: Tesamalcl fhinnojo Sawadn
Shinichl Oshiderd Haashi Morlynme
Yoneho *Toote® Matsunags  Charles Yoshil
Hodge Yatenabe Count Ikeds

Jan Muten - Domel Hews iJin" Nekebayashl
Ed Euroishi Joa T. Hiraslowa
Dave Hugm Roy Ozald

Karunaus Uno
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fhould Agent Tillmen's investigntion in the Orlent dowelop the
identity of eny other individusls in a cetegory similsr to those above listed,
it would sppesr well for seld agent to likewise explore the posedbility of
obisining ndditions] evidentisry materlal in mn interview with seld unnamed
porgons, with a view toward negnting defendent's contention that she wea
acting vnder diress and coercion, snd with the additionel iden in mind of
developing evidence of defendsnt®s alleged treéssonous intent snd the fects
md circamstences parrounding the broadocasting sctivities of dafendsnt.

It is distinctly vnderstood that the above request for investl-
gation should not be consldered in eny memner as limiting Specinl Agent Tillmen
in the scops of his investigationsl sctivity on hins prospective trip to the
Orient on thin omse. It is dealrsble to have Agent Tillman conduct mwch other
end additions]l investigation in thins matter ss becomes spparent and necossary
to him from tise to tire on the besis of exy, all and sdditions)l information
socured by him during the course of hie officisl Inveatigational activity
in comnection with Baram complisncs with this request.

Flease rest asmured that the Buremu®s cooperation in commection
with a1l pest end proepective investipetions]l werk in conmection with this enee
is greatly apprecisted.

Bespactfally,

= TIAK J. EoBssY
United States Attorney



Letter from Frank J. Hennessy, U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District of California, to Harry M. Kimball,

Special Agent in Charge, Federal Bureau of Investigation,
San Francisco
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I'-m Hi :hmp :"q-..

Specinl Agemnt in Charge,
Federal Buresi of Investipgation,
Foaderal Office Zullding,

Sen Frenclese, Californin.

Ret TUnited States v. Iwn Togurl D'Amine,
My dear Mr. Kimbollt

Reference in made to the sbove entitled treasen prosscution
pregently panding in this Jurisdiction. ;

All proliminery pre-trial motions interposed by defendent have
been denied, a plea of not gmilty has been sntered by dofendsnt, snd the trial
of this cmase on ita merite before Chief Federal Judge Hoche snd o petit jury
is schednled to commence 16 May, 1949. Speciel Agent Tillesn of the Los
Angeles Fleld Divielon ig presently in the Orient in comnection with the .
prospective dayslopment of esrtein facts in this snd compsnion litigation.

The Buresu has to date done considersble work in this snd prospective sequel
Toderal criminel cepital litigntion which han been of invelushle mssistance to
the government. The investigntive activity of Bpecisl Agente John Eldon
Dann of the San Franoleco Field Division, and Frederick Tilimsn of the Los
Angeles Fleld Mvielon of the Puremu, has proved of invalusble mesistmnoe to
this office mnd the Departmentin connection with the dewlopment of the case.
Some lnvestigetionsl lesds remain to be followed up by the Suresn in this
enge, nnd the seme will be hereinafter linted.

Title 18 U.5.0. Revised Sec. 3432 provides that the govermment
shall furnish to the defendmnt three days prior to trisl., enong other thinge,
& 1ot of tha witnesses to be produced at the triel, with the place of abode
of esch witness. The place of abode mentioned in the ptatute mbove referred
to mesns the hone or resldenge of the witness in question. "hen the witnesses
herelnafter mentloned are interviewed by the Buresu, it is requested that
information ms %o their laat place of shode be obtained, so that statutory
complience with the above quoted congressiconl enaciment mey be had.

The following nemed persons are for the moat part ex-mervicemen
prosently resddent in the United Steten, tut n few of the persons whoses nemes
are listed in this paregraph were employeos of government contractors mho
were employed in the Southwest Faclfic during the time that defendsnt's
broadenste were nade. Defendsnt was broadcesting to Agerican troops In the
Southwest Pacific for the Japenese "Zero Hour* progrsm ower Eadio Toikyo from
November, 1943, until Jugust, 1945, The persons whose nsmes are listed in



Berry M. Kinmbndl, Zaq. Pape 92 Joamminry 18, 1949,

this allegedly hosrd her troedecasts, and may be oble to recognlze

her volce. are all referred to in Burem reports written in 4ifferent

Fleld Mvisicns, and the dnate of the report on which the witness wes interviewed,
topother with the neme of the agent who interviewed the prospective witness,

i the nome of the town in which the agent wrote his report, are hereinafter

given opponite the nemo of the prospective witness sho i llsted. The prospective
witnesses 1isted 4in this peragreph dhould bo interviewsd or re-interviewed by

the Puress for the purposs of determining whether or no they ere able to recopnize
the defendant’s volce. A recording of one of defendent's brosdensts shonld be
plagred back to ths persons who ars nemed in this paregrsph for ths purpose of
determining whother or not sald person is positive in his or her idmtification

of defenlant's volge. If sedd person 1s sadlo to poeitiwely effect idemtification
of dafendsnt's voloe, then tho interviewing sagent chould interrogate the prospective
witness »ith reference to that witness' Beat reccllection s to the sudbstence of
what dafendsnt ssdd on ths wvarious brasfdezsts of dafendsnt which were heard by
srid progpective witness. The cugpested procelure Just eutlined will emnble the
government trisl sttorneye to gelect mnd exll the witneeses whoee personnl sttendence
ig dssirsd on hehalf of the United States at the trisl on the merits. The names

of the partiss montioned in this parsgraph are hereby listed as follows:

Mot st BRSBTS doane e York

Jules I. Sutter, Jr. B=l2=48; p. 11 Orton Lon Angelon

¥lliem Hslbert

Thompsca DuB=dd Joa Elce fon Dego
Grover quentin Waldrop Te28e48 Caasidy Los Jageles
Gilbert Valssqreg Ge12-45 Crten Tos ngelon
Sgt. Chorles M. Hall G=12=45 Orton Len Angelen
Beach Keller T 20w Kackemzie Charlotie, H. C.
Rarl Nolevitt Z-20-40 Unclcanzle Cherlotte, W. C.
Jokn 0. Heren S=20-48 Meckamrio Cherlotte, M. C.
Howard Allen Simes 3-20=48 Latter S.A.C. Seattle to Drector.
Myren E. Whiting 2-12-48 Attobery Denver.

Henry Yegmer Be20=43 MoOerry i
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Hltneas Bate of Heport Agent Zom

Bggene Enan 2=3=483 p. 12 Genoco Hew York

Leo Reed Bed=i8] p. 12 Genco Hew York

Varrea J, Kellsy S=T=if; p. 14 Geneco New York

Soott Folk l=23=48 Lotter to A A.G. Quinn from Direator.
David 1. Cilmore 1=5=d43 Memo Direstor Hoover to A.A.C, Cuimm,
F3I, Homolulu)

Charles Bayer 1=0=48 Letter Director Hoover to A.A.G. (uimn,
(Kenmors, New York)

Oporge A. Kent 1-F=i3 Nemo Director Hoover to A.A.G. Cuinmm
(mll‘lﬂtﬂﬂl [ 7..1}

Falter B Cloments 1=S=48 Hamo Mrector Hoover to A.A.G. (nimm
(Vashington, D. 0.)

John Robert Brown 1=5-43 Momo Director Hoover to AJA.C, (ninn
(Kpnsan City)

John Gillen Lyon 1-5~48 Hemo Director Hoover to AvA.C. oninn
{Ravenns, Chie)

Honnld F. Hawthorne 10-15-47 0'Neil11 Mitaburgh

Felix Chaves 12-24-47 lemo Mrector Hoover to AJA.0. Onimn
hlbuq:urqnl WM. )

Epbert Wallsce Cramlet 10-P4-47 p. 3. Memo Mregtor Hoover to A.A.G. Guinn
(233 So. Greenwood, .
Palatine, I11.)

Pl Bsumsn 12=24=47 : Hema Director Hoover teo A.A.0, Qalmn
{Arlington, Ya.)

Enrrr G414 12=11=47, P 2. Letter 5.A.C. Loa Angeles to

(Loa Angeles Mrecter Hoover.
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¥itnoas Date of Report Agent Town

Sem Cavnar 13=11=47 Letter 0.4.Cs Los Mpgelon to
(Los Angeles) Director Hoover

Msrshall Hout 15=11=-47 Letter 5,A.C. Lom Angelen to
(Lom Angeles) Director Hoover

Capt, 2. B, Mickerson  T=22-46 Ferrin San Franclece
{Kerchant Uariner)

Col. John T. Selden 1=23-46 © Wilgen . San Dlegs

Al Dopkin 1=-0=45 Danmevile Kenana City
Ted Sherdsssn De)=40 Raderts I.u- Mapolea
Yatoe HeDanlel 1-13-46 Iright San Francleco
Robart 7, Hartman 12-20-45 Haberts Lon Angeles

TILLIAM PORTER mentioned in Agmt Oenco's repert written at Hew York
under date of T=30=48, hensrd defendant's brosdcasts when in the Southwest Pacific.
Then re-interviewed, it should be definitely ascertained vhether or not Porter is
able to ldmtify defendent's volee. A recording of one of defendant's knowmn brosd-
crets should be played back to Porter for the purpose mentloned. Frospective witness
Forter spparently made entries of certaln of defendsnt's remsrks in a diery, It -
would be well for the Buresu to obtaln the dlery mentioned after Forter is interviewed.
If Forter is selected ns n trisl witness, the dlsry can be uned by the prosecution
to good ndvartage for the purnose of refreshing Forter's recollection, if sany. The
gontents of the dimry vhen cdinined should be noted end the dlary forwnrded to the
Sen Frencleco Fleld Divielon of the Buremu.

RICHARD L. HENSCHEL is referred to in the report of Specisl Agent
Genco at Hew York under date of Z=24=48. Apparently Henschel was an eroy photographer
sho sow defendant after the wer when she was interviewed by the srmy snd represen-
tatives of the press. On Henschel's re-interview. it should be secertained whether
or not defendsant wns in custody nt the time aha was interviewsd vhen witneszs wea
proesant. Henschel's best recollection in substance of the statements made by



dafendant at the time in mestion shounld be developed: It sppenrs from the
Buresu reperts concerning interviews with this witness that defendmmt probably
gave geid witness eoples of seripts of her railo brondesats. An effert should
be mads to locata sama, and after Henschal has been interrognted with reference
to how snid soripts may be identified from an evidentisry stsndpoint as the
product of the defendnnt, the some should be forwnrded to the Sen Francisco Field
Divielon of tha Buremi. Hanschel aleo haard defendsnt btroadeessts A recording
of ana of dsfendisnt's known brosdossts chould be played beck to Henschel for the
purpose of determining shether or not he iz capadle of positively effecting a
volece identificotion. He sheuld slso be guestioned with reference to hie best
rocollection as to the substance snd context of the broadeasts which he hesrd
wvoloed by defendant. It is belleved that 1t would be well for the Jurem to
obtain a simed statement from this prospective witness.

WILLIAM JUMIOR PISAT 4ie mnentioned in the report of Agent Hunt written
gt St. Louls unler date of 31748, end likewise in the report of OSpeclal Agent
Melorry writbien st Denver under date of 19«18«47, This witness wes sn Amerlcan
citizen vho was & prisonsr of war of the Jepsness, snd apperently saw defendsnt
broadcast. He should be re-interviewsd with reference to hia best recollecticn
an to the mbstance mnd context of what defendont seld when he sew her before the
miorophone. He is able to identify a ploture of the defemdent. It has been
previously reperted by the Buremi that dsfendant sought to have this witnsss speslk
over the miorophons over Hadio Tolyo and ony that American prisoners of war were
treated kindly. It is remested that this witneéss be thoreughly re-interviewsd,
end it iz believed that 1t would ba well if a sipned statement wers chtained frem
him genserning the facte sl ocircusstences discussed in thias peragraph. It may
well be that he wll)l prove to be a materlsl witness for end on behslf of the United
States at tha trinl on the merits herein before the United States Court snd a

petit jJury here.

PATL HORGAY ig mentioned in tho report of Specisl Agent Parker written
st Knoxville under date of De?l-dS. Horgmn wos a former agent of tha army's
Counter-Intelligmee Corps. Has spparently was present vhen defendant was inter-
viesed after the fall of Japsn snd when she re-snscted one of her hroadeasts.

He should ba re-interviewed and interrogated with reference to the mbetence and
context of the radio brosdeanst seript which defendsnt voiced after the war in his
presence. He ghould likewlse be interrogated as to what defendant said in sube
stence, pecording to his best recollestion, in his pressnce shen she wes belng
interviewsd by Horgen or othars. Ig is believed that Horgen is pressntly & Speclsl
Agent with the Zarem: on duty at some field division office.

CHARLES HETHICK ie mantionsd in tha report of Specinl Agent Parker
of Enoxville written under date of 2=21-48. Hetrick ie a forver agent of the
Counter-Intelligence Corpe of the army. In that capacity he interviewsd defendsnt
et least twemty times. His home pddress is reported ss Flm Oreek, Hebraska. He
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M&‘htlmmh:rthhﬂmnlhhluthmﬂmd-hlllihmldh
furnished the Sen Francisco Fleld Divisien. Hetrlck will undoubtedly be remired
a8 8 government wiiness at the trisl on the merits, but it is not nocessary at
this juncture for the interviewing agent to notify Hetriek of that faot.

NEuICAN YICE CONSUL MANN 4g mentiomad at page 6 of the sumary
report wiitten by Special Agent Orton at Los Angeles on l=2T=48. 1t mppears
that Congul Msmn wns told by defendent in 1941 that she was sn Americen snd not
a dusl nationsl. Inasmuch ne defendent's slleglence to the United States will
be one of the comtested points in this Pederal criminal capitsl litigatiom, if
is requested that Vice Consul ¥amm be located smd interrognted with rafarence
to the sudstamce of the conversstion which transpired between himeelf snd defendent
in 1941 concerning her nationality statue.

JAMES J. KXZNEY meantioned on page 57 of the summery report of Opeciol
Agont Orton at Los ingeles under date of le23-48, was a former represeatative of
the jmerissn pymy mepasine PTANKS, Along with ome Dale Ersmer, mabject was present
when defentant was interviewsd after the fnll of Japan. He should be closely
interropated md re-interviewsd with roference to the exact adnissions in subptance
which defendmt msde in his presence when she wee interviewed by witness snd Kramer
in the frll of 1945, It would be well if a slgned statement were obicined from
Keanoy. It iz believed that he will be an importent government witness at the '
trial on the marits.

RN

DALE XRAMER, mentioned on page 57 of the pumsery report of Special
Apent Orton st Los Angelon under date of l=23=-48, wes n former army ropréesmtative
of the imericrn military service magasing "TAMKM., With one Jomes J. Heenay,
witness interviewed defendmnt after the fall of Japen in 1945. Kraser ghould be
re=interrogated snd information doveloped ns to whether or not defendent was in
custody, protective or otherwise, at the time of the intervies. The mubstance
of the imterview in detail, eccordimg to the best recollectiecn of witness, sheuld
ba developed. It im believed that witness Xramer has in his possession some
notes concerning hie interview with defeniant which ha pads at the time of tha
gsme. A signed ntotement should be sbinined from this prospective witness, os
he msy undoubtedly be called as o trisl government witnegs at the time of the
triel on the merits harein. Any notes in his possession chould, if poosible, be
obtalned snd forwerded to the Sen Froncleco Field Divielon so that they will be
w"“'.ﬂ-!

Tieut, VAUGHN PAUL is mentionsd in the sumsary report of Speclal
Ageat Orton written of Los Angeles under dste of 1=-27-48, TFeul wae & noval
officer snd commentntor in cherge of a sound progren when defendant re-snncted
gome of her brosdensts for Americsn mtherities subsesuent to the fall of the
Jopenese Expire. He should be re-interviewed as to the surrounding fects and
olroumstancss concerning defendent's re-onsctment of her broadersting mctivities
gt the tims under investipgational serutiny. The nemes of the persons prosent
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should be developed snd information obtained an to shether or no defendmnt, at
tha time, was in custody, elther military or protective, or otharwiss. It ia
alleged that st the time of said interview, when defendmt remmscted her previes
broadcasting program, that certaln minlssions were made Yy her. The mbstence
of said admisslons should be slicited from Pml in sccordmos with his beat
recollection of the some. It sppears thet workdng under Paul st the time was a
naval sound crew which worked from the U.5.0. MITCHELL, which was designated in
navel parlence as "Sound Crew No. 26 545. Mtchell?. The navel enlicted personnel
comprising snid sound crew were as follows: (1) Comersmsn Thomas; (2) Sound men
Crogney; (3) Mlerophone men Hanter. If the sound film made under the direction
of lieats Paul e avalleble in the Buresu, 1% becomes obvious that Iieut. Pl
end the personnel of his sound crew as above listed shoudd Ye loceted, and thelr
present places of obode made kmowm, so that they may be subpoenned pe witnosses
on behalf of the government nt the trial on the perits, if it in decided to offer
the sound filo in question in evidemce. The navel porsomel mentioned in thias
paragraph, including Lieut. FPenl, should be interviewed with refersnce to their
best recollection as to the mbstence of the remarks made by defendsnt ot the
tize under investigationnl scrutiny. It likewlse sppocrs from the report of

il Agent Boberts writim st los Angeles under date of 2-1-46, that Lisut.

Panl hosrd defendant's broadeasts in the Southwest Pecific and is able to

13entify her wolee. It would nppesr that it would be ddetinotly sdvantsgscus
to the government if a lmown recording of defendsnt's brocdossts were pleyed back
to Lient. Feul for the purpose of deternining vhether or not he 1e adle to effect
a positive volce 1dmbification.

J« Tu REZITZ wns a Captain in the Army 206th Counter-Intelligonce
Corps Detachment. In 1945 he wan instrumsntal in obtaining fron defendant's
hasbend coples of certain soripts of her radio broadesste. Heitz should be im-
mediately located nnd interviewed concerning the fects and circunstences surrounding
the cbtainment of the soripts in question. It 1 probsble thet m motion will be
interposed by defendant to suppress the seripts aforesentioned on the ground that
the pame were obtalned by en 1llegal serrch and selmure in violntion of defendsnt's
rights under the Fourth snd Fifth Jeendments to the Constitution of the United
States. 1It, therefore, soppeara necessrry that witneess Heltz be interviewed with
reforence to the fscts and olrcumstences concerning his obteimment of said scripts,
end partleulsarly with reference to vhether or not the seme were wolunterily turned

over to hin Yy defeondant's hushand; where sald scripts were cbielned snd nt what
tize; how the seme were ldentified to witness Redtsz an belng the produst of defendsnt;
undsr what puthority he selzed the sans if eald soripts were not wlumbarily tarned

over to him; snd shether defendent wes in custody, protective or otherwiee, at the
tine witness Redtz obiained seld soriptss Informstion ehould likewise bo developed
a8 to whether or no sny process, militsry or legel, waa uped by Cepteln Reltx ot
time he came into possession of coples of the scripts jJust diocussed. It is
eved that 1% would be adventagecus to have a simed stotement exscuted Yy thias
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BEN ¥, CHAYFIELD 4is nentioned in the report of Speclal Agent
Heroford written at Atlanta wnder date of l=37=48. It appears that Chetfield
hesrd some of defendant's bBroadesats. e should be re-interviewed mmd a
inoen recarding of defendent's volce should be re-played to hin for the purpose
of dstermining whether or no Chatfield is able to effect & positlive wolce
identiftcation. He should 1ikewise be interrogated with reference to his best
recollection mg to the substance of the remsrks which he heard defendsnt make
on the varicus broadcasts of defendant which hs heard. It sppesrs llkewlne
that Chatfield wam present vhen witness Dale Kramer of "Tenk" megaszine, which
witness is heretofore nentloned in this letter, interviowed defendent subsequent
to the fell of Japan. ¥Titness Chatfield should be interrogated with reference
to his beat recollection as to wshat deféendmt sald at the time che was inter-
rogated by Kramer. Inesmach ag this witness is of conelderable importence, it
is believel that 1t would be woll for the Duresu to dbiain a signed siatement
from him on his re-interview. Information sheuld likewise be developed from
Chatfiold ns to whether cr not defendant was in custody, protective or otherwiee,
ot the $ime of the occurrence of the interview which he witneseed.

CHANLES W, DOWNHS 1s nentioned in a memorandum from Director Hoover
to Agsistent AtSorney Genercl Guinm under date of 1-15-48. It sppears that
Downa interviewed defendent ns on ermy representative after the fall of Japen.
1t appesrs 1ikewise that Dowms hao stated thet he may be in a position %o furnish
edditionsl soripte of defendant's brondonsts which were glven to hinm by her.
in effort chould be made to obtaln the original saripts referred to, slthough
1t ig believed that some photostats of the seme are presently in the possescion
of the Buresi. I% will be necessary for the government to have poasession of
the originel scripts so that they gan, as o matter of law, be said to be properly
identified and legnlly admissible ms evidence at the trisl. Witness Jowms should
1ikewies be interropnted with reference to his best recollection ss to the
mbiect of defendont'a statenents st the time sho was interviewed in his presence.
It 1a believed that 1% would ba well to howe this witness execute a2 signed -
gtatement, The interviawing ngont should likewise interrogate wilnsss Downg
ag to whothor or not dafendsnt was in custody et the time of the interview of
defendsnt in Doms' prosence, ed 1€ the snewer is in the affirmative, information
should bs obtnined ma to tho type of custody referred to.

One JCIDT RICHARD EISENHART i mentioned in the Teport of Special

i
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frem him a signed statement concerning the focts md elromatsnces surreanding
the obtainment of the mtographed yen note. It is bolleved that the eriginal
yen note should be forearded to the San Franclsco Fleld Diviaion of the Buresu,

VILLIAM E, FENIMORE, Special Employes of ths Buresn at 5t. Lowde,
is mentioned in o pemorantvm from Director Hoover to Assietsnt Attorney Cenersl
Quinn under date pf l=2-48, It sppesrs that Peninore was a former agent of the
aroy's Counter-Intelligence Corps, nnd ms such interviewed defendsnt subgequent
to the termination of sotual hostilities in the Orient botwesn United States
ead Japen. On re-interview, Special Employee Fenimore should be ruestioned with
reference to the circumstsnces under which he interviewed dofendmnt, md whether
or not shoe wns in eustody nt the time. A elpned atatement should be obteined
from Yenimore recalling, nocording to tha bost of his recollection, vhat steto-
mente defendant made in mubstsnce nt the time of the interview mnder investige-
tlonnl serutinmy.

CAPTAIN BOUIN EAINFLEISCH, Washington; D. C.. im mentioned in n
memorendun fron Mrector Hoover to former Assistent Attorney Generel Quinn under
date of 12=24=47. In mald memorsndum, Csptein Kalbfleisch makes reference to &
filn shom to Jjmericen prisoners of wer in Japen, in which film defondant eyperred.
It in belioved that pn effort chomld be made by the Buremn to obtein the f1ilm in
question, and 1f 1t develops that the smae is uncbininadle, it moy be that Captain
Ealbflelech cen testify as to his beat recollecticn concerning the substance of
the remarke made by defendsnt ot the tinme her sound film wes shown to American
srisoners of war as aforessild. In eny event, it 1o helleved that some dlstinet
advantage would acerue $o the government if a further interview with Captain Ealbe
flelsch ware purmued looking towsrd the end of obtaining from him his best recol-
lection 2a to vhat dofendent said at the time the sound film in questicn was volced
to Americmn prisoners of war.

ks Service Unit filea of the Criminpgl Divizion, Department of Justice,
Uashington, reflect thnt one M3, THOMAS H, LEE, 1155 Tinston Avemie, San Marine,
Colifornin, wrote to the Departnent and steted that she had heard defendsnt bronde
cant nightly during the war., It ig Belleved thet 1t would be well if Mre. lee
were interviewed, ond a known recording of defendent's volece played back to hor for
the purposc of deternining whether or not she is capable of effecting o positive
voles ldentification, If Nra. Leo is able to idmtify defendant's volge, she
sheald be interrogated with reference to her best recollection ra to the context
and substence of what defendent gsaid over the alr during the peried under inwesti-

gation,

; MfSgt. ELWIY BISHOP 41p mentioned im tho memorsndum from Director
Hoover to former Assistant Attorney Oenersl Muinm under dote of 12-173-47, It
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sppoars that at ons $ime Sgt. Bichop, As an amatewr, made three recordings of
defendsnt's brondessts. It in mggested that it mould be well if investigative
information were developad by the Buremu os to whether or not Sgt. Bishop is
g1l in possogeion of the records in question, and if =0, whether or not they
are recordings of defeniant's broadonsts. A knowm recording of defendant's
volce chould be played back to the sergesnt for the purpose of ascertalning
shether or not he ig cbla to f1dmbify the volce therein ne the srme he heard
when on dnty in tha Southwost Peeific. If the sergesnt is adle to recall
defenisnt's brosdonsta, he should be interviewed with reference to his best
recollection a3 to the coatext snd subetsnce of what she seld over the slr.

JUIN L. MARRIS, with the Federal Comamicatlions Commlsalon at
Homololu, is mentioned in the msmorsniun of Mrector Hoower to former Assistont
Attorney Oenarsl Quinn dated 15-13-47. It sppears that Harris may hove monitored
some of defendimnt's broadossts when he wes stetionod o Honolulu. He cheald
bo interviewed with refercnce o his shility %o effect o positive wolee identl-
ficntion of dafendent's Trosdcastes, and in this particulme 4t would appear well
1f one of defenlent's knom recordinge were played back to Harris. He lllowiee
ghoald be interviowed with roferonce to his beat recollection oe to the contaxt
and pubatezco of what dofendent sadd in hor Troadenste which he hoard, if .

Gl f
to witness Houlk for the purpose of
enshling Mn o effect = positive volce identificetion of dafendsnt. 1f wiltness
Fouk 1s sble to offect m positive woles identification » he should be interro-
gotad with refereonce to hs best recollection as to the substence of shat
dafendmnt gaid in tha broadcasts volced by her which he heard, if amy. Ghould
1t dewelop that seid witnoss 19 cepeblo of effecting a posdtive volce identifi-
gation, it is belleved that it vould be well to cbiain a signed statemont from

E
:
%
i
s

:

ROELY FLOYD KOOGHREID is pentlioned in the report of Special Agent
Esbarts written et Loa fapeles tnder date of 7-l-40. ERemereid is presently
resident at Peterodurg, Helwnsim, Information obtsined by the Buresu discloses
that this witness may have herrd brosdcasis volged by defendant conceraing the
loss of Americsn ships in the Battle of Leyte (nlf. It =ill be recslled that
sadd battle snd the plleged resultent loss of Jparicsn ships sre the subject
matter of overt scts O snd 6 1add in the indictment. Oriental witnesses George
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Miteushio snd Kenlclchi Okl sre ecpected to testify at the trisl on the merits

as %o the comxlsslon of the overt mcts in question. Frospective witness Hemmereid
should 1isten to & kmown recording of defendest's wolce for the purpose of deter-
mining whether or not he ie copable of offecting & positive volice identification.
If he positively identifies defendsnt’s volce on the recording played back to
him, he should be closely interrogeted with yeference %o hin best recollection a9
to the mbstenco of the statenents he heard defendsnt make on wnrious brosdcasts
over the aly, 1f any. If it sppears that thip witness in capsble of idemtifying
defendant "o volee, 1% is belleved thot 4%t would be well for the interviewing agent
to obtain = signed statoment from said witnens.

DNULY M. WENER 4s nentioned in the report of Speclsl Agent Hoberts
Los Angeles wnder date of P=l-45. Tenner resides st Alhesbra, Califcrain.
sppears that he mey have heard defendont broadeast concerning the slleged loss
Amoricen shipe in tha battla of Leyte Oulf in Octcber, 1944. Overt acts 5 and
124d 4in the indietnent concern defendmt's broasdcasts involving the alleged
ons of Agericsn ships in the battle of Leyte Gulf. Orientel witnosses Ceorpe
trughio snd Kemriohi Okl are expected to testify as to the commiesion of said
overt rote. A lmown recording of defendent's wolce should be pleyed back to
witness Wemar for the purpose of determining whether or not he iz capable of
affecting & poritive wvolce identification. If 4t develops that Femner 1s able %o
i1dentify defendnnt's volce, be cheuld be closely interrogated with reference to
his best recollectlon na to the mbatasnce of any remarks he henrd defendant wvolce
over the sir dwring the period mentioned in the indlotment. . I 1t develops that
mibject is cspable of positively identifyring defendsnt's volce ma the one he
hesrd over the air, it io bdeliewved that it would be well i€ thoe interviewing apent
would obtain a signed ntetement from hin.

Cne Turl Suglmura is mentioned in the repert of Specinl Agent Noberts
at Los Angeles under date of Twledf. Duglmra is o former FuB.I1.5. employee who
is supposed to have monitored defendsnt's Yrosdcasis in the Fnelfic Ocean aree
daring the late war. He should be located by the Puresu, smd when interviewed
'{nfornation chould be developed from him ns to whother or not he im capable of
effecting o positive identification of defendont's wolce. ¥or the purpose afore-
pentioned, it is believed that 1% would be well if a knowm recording of defemdsnt's
volce were pleyed back $o Suglmra, He should likewlce be mquestiened with reference
to his best recollection ns to the subatence of sny remsris which he heard defendant
broedcast over the alr, - :

FIED B. EATN i mentloned in the report of Specinl Agent Cenco at
New Yori dated D-27-18, It sppenrs that this witness, as a prisoner of war, nade
m origine) wazed recording with defendsnt. An effort shopld be made to deternine
the present locstlion of sadd eriginal waxed recording, and 1f the csme ie loceted,
41t shamld be forverded to the Son Fromeleco Fleld DMvieion. Helm should be closely
interviowed concerning the facts snd circumstences surrounding the melking of eald

b ARk
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recording, mnd information should be elicited from him ns to the substance
of the stateents,sccording to his best recollection, which dafendsnt mads at
the time, including defendsnt's atetements made on sald waxed recording and
otherwise. It is believed that it would be distinctly adwentagecus to the
govermment if a signed stetesent were to be obteined by the interviewing
ageat from this witness. -

WILLIAN B. HOCEEY in mentioned in the report of Specdal Agent”

Secton ot Sen Frencisco under dete of 4-1-43, It sppesrs that this witness
uay have some recordings which he made when he monitorel defendant's broad-
caste. It would ba well if this investigationsl lead ware run down as moon
eg poseible. A lmewn recording of defendant's volece should be played beck to
witnsss Hockey, snd he should be interrogated as to whether or mot he is able
to effect a positive identification of defendant's volece. If Hockey is sble
to identify dafendsnt's wolce ns one of the broadonsts which he hesrd during
the wer, he should Bo closely interrogated ms to his dest reccllection aa to the
mibatance snd context of the remsrks made by defendmnt over the air during the
period of time he heard hor. T .

BETTY HASHII 19 mentionsd im the report of Special Agent Johnstone
at Denver under date of 2=8-46. Frior to embarication for Japen-in 1941, de=
fendsnt is supposed to have told this witness thst ghe, defendant, waz golng
to Jepan for the purpose of studying medioine, snd that her uncles were in
modicel circles in Jepan nnd would furnish impetus to her prospective medical
caroer there. This witness should be interrognted ond n slgned statement
obtained from her contadning, to the best of her recollection; the substonce
of her tolikeg with defendant shout this matter. .

' DOROTHY WEBLEY, n former uﬂlmwlmhhutwf is oen-
ticned in the report of Specinl Agent a% Loz Angeles unler date of
11=23=45, It sppesrs that this witness has stated that defendant wos en iscle-
ticalet snd evinced considorsble antagonism Sowerd cur lote Fresident Franklin
D, Hoosevelt. This witness should be questioned with regerd %o say statements
which defendsnt mads concerning thoe involvement of the Unlted States in n wer
with Jepan, the possible cruses thereof, and tho responsibility therefor. It
, 1s believed that 1% would be well to obtain s elgned statement from thie witness.

Dil. OLAIR STECOALL, n former associate sndfor eme of defendant's
professora at the University of Califernia, Loa Aageles Sranch, is mentioned.
in the report of Speclel Agent Heborts st Los Angelen, dated 1l-R3-45. Defendant,
prior to leaving for Japen in 1941, is supposed to have told Ir. Stogoall that
her mole purpose for procesding to Japem wea to matriculste st s medicnl school
there. Dr. Steggall should be thorcughly re-interviewed concerning his con-
verastion with defendant em this matter, and, if poseible, a signed statement
should be obtained from him. To dste, when interviewed by representatives of
the Buresu ond the army's Counter-Intelligence Corps, defondsnt has stesdfestly
maintained thet che proceedsd to Japen in July of 1941 for a temporary vislt
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only end for the sole purpose of wvisliing her sunt who sllegedly was then
seriouely indeposed.

s, HOLLIZ V. HAE, a former los Angeles nelghber of defendant,
is mentioned in the report of Speclal Apent Roberts at Los Aageles, dataed
11=-03-45, MNrs. Mml: hes stated thot defendant told her in 1941 that che,
dafendont, was going to Japen for the sole purpoee of studying medicine there.
The sibetenco of snid conversation between Mrs, Meuk snd defendant, insofar as
witness Mk 1e shle to recall the pame, should be developed. It would be
well if the Burepu were able %o obialn a signed atatement from lre. Hmle,

The necoanity and impertence of obteining informetion ns to the
plage of sbodo of esch of the prospective withesses referred to in this letter
within the purview of Title 18 V.5.0. Reviged Section 3432 is again strosced.

Flesse rest sseured that the Burema's cooparation in thie cnse
is greatly spyrecinted. :

Eespectfully,

T TRAK J. amgssy
United Stetes Attorney.



Letter from Wayne Collins, attorney for the defense, to Tom
DeWolfe, Special Assistant to the Attorney General.



Faebruery 16, 1949

Tom DeWolfe, Eeq.

Speclal hAselstant to the Attorney General
Department of Justice Bullding
Weshington 25, D. C.

Dear Hr. DeWolfe:

In re: U.8. ve. 4'Aquino
Hﬂ [ ] 31 ?1 E-R

1 have applied te the Joint Chlefs of Staff, U.3.A.,
Pentagon Bullding, Weshington, DI. C., and to SCAP at
Tokyo, for millitary permits for Theodore Tamba, Esq.,
ettorney, assoclated with me, and Tetsuliro Nakamura,
investigater and interpreter from my office, to vialt
Japan for me for the purpose of locating witnesses end
obtaining statements from them, and &lso for the pur=-
posa of cbtaining the depositions of witneeses in the
event the Court denles & motion to be mede by me for
the productlon of alien witnoeses in Japan and citizen
witnessee iln Japsn at Covernmen®t expense on the ground
that Mra. Iva T. d'Aquine hae insufficient funds to pro-
fduce such witnessea.

1 em not entirely positive that relatives and friende
of Hrs. d'Aquino will be able to ralse the necessary funds
Tor the purpose of such & trip but, leboring under the
apprenenelon that such funds may be reised, 1t is my hope
that Mr. Tamba and Hr. Hakamura will be permitted to go
to Japan via Fan-American Alrways on or about Harch 11,
1949. If so, shortly thereafter they should have amoer-
talned the whereabouts of a number of witnesses and be
ready to take thelr deposlticne as above mentioned. Inas-
much ap the nemes of these witnesses are at the present
time unknown %to me, I would like te ascertaln from you
if you will agres to the taking of depositions of wit-
nesges and by stipulation in order to save time in epply-
ing to the Court for wvardous orders for eo doing. I should
nleo like to ascertain IT you or one of your aesistants
could arrange to represent the Covernment at the teking



of such depoelticons to commence shortly after the middle
of Harch.

Hr. Tamba and Mr. Nakeamurs have also applied to the
Fageport Division, Department of State, Washington, D. C.,
to the attentlon of Krs. Shipley, Chief, FPassport Divleion,
through the Ean Francisco OrTice of ths Seorstary of Gtate,
for passports to be issued to them for said purposa. I
an enclosing coples of my latters to SCAP and the Joint
Ghiefs of Staff and also copiles of my latters to the Pasg—
port Divislon.

if there le anything that you can do to expedite the
lssuance of the passporte and the obtaining of the military
peraits, I ehell be grateful to you.

Yery t ¥ youre,

Duplicate origlnal to:
Frenk J. Hennessy, U.S2. Attorney



Letter from Alexander M. Campbell, Assistant Attorney
General, to Frank J. Hennessy, U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District of California
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Frank J. Hannesey, Esquire
United Etates Attorney
Yan Francisco, Califernie

Dear Mr, Honnessy:

Ha: United States v. Iva Togurl D'Aguing =
Traason

Hefarence is made to the above entitlsad treason
prosecution presently pending in your jurisdiotion. The
Dapartasnt acknowledzos rocolipt of and thanks you for yours
of March 21, 1949 addrossed to Tom DeWolfe of the Criminal
Division. The subject matter of your latter refars to a routine
investipation of the petit jury panel from which prospostive talas-
man will be salescted to decide the foactuml issuas at tha trial on
the marits in the ecnse at bar.

It has boean the invariable poliey of the Dapartment in
treason cases of this type in the past to reguest tha Foderal
Bursau of Investigation to conduct a routine investipation of the
panal of prospactive talesmen from which the trial jurora will ba
solected. The Dapartment's exparience in this type of litigatien
has lad it to balisve that soma advantapgscus results may accrus to
the Governmant &s a result of such an investigation. It is thore=
fora bolisved that it will ba to the best intarests of the Govern-
mant &t the approprlats time for this Division to requast the Buroan
to make an Investipation of the jury panel from which patit venire-
men will be selected to sit in this cause.

Flease keep the Department advised as to all material
devalopments that ensua herain.

hespoctfully,
For tha Attornsy Canaral

ALEXANDER M. CAMPBELL
Asslistant Attornay Cenaral



Letter from Alexander M. Campbell, Assistant Attorney
General, to the Secretary of the Army, Washington, DC
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Moy 18, 19k9

Tha Secratary of the Army
Dapartnent of the Aray
Wasldngton, L.0s

dirs
Attention: [ioutanant Colonel Reginald ©. Mlller, JAGO
flet United States v. Iva Toyurl D'Aquine - Treason

: Roferenca is made to the above entltled treason prosecutlon
presantly pending in the Foderal Horthern Judiclal District of Cali-
fornia. The trial of this causs on its morits will comsence bafore
Chiaf Fedaral Judge Michasl Hoche and o potlt jury at dan Franelsco,
California on July 5, 19l9.

The perscnal attendance in Han Franclsco as Uovernment
witnosses of cartaln Japanase nationals and one Milippine natienal,
presantly resident in Japan and Manils, Philippine Islands, is vitally
nacessary to the proper prosentatlon of the Uovernmant's case againat
defendant bafore the trial couwrt and jurors as aforesaid, The pro—
spective teotimony of the Japaness natlonals and the Philippine na-
tiocnal aforesald belng matarial and absolutely necessary in order
to insure a thorough presantation of this case to the trisl court
and jurcrs, it bacomss necessary to request the parscnal attendance
of sald Japaness nationals and Fhdlippine national in San Franeisco
two waoks pricr to the sotunl com=oncesant of tha trial for purposos

of propar preparation for the trial precesdings.

This Departsent 1s fwnishing your Department with the last
known addrosses of the witnesses below listed, Whars strest sddrossos
are not availablo, this Departmsnt has endsavorsd to ldentify the wite
negses as fully as possible, in order to facilitats thalr locatlon.
Undoubtedly, Aramy Intalligenca C2, Cenaral Headquarters, Telgo, will
roadily be abls to locate tho witnassos bolow mentionsd, whose specifiec
addrespos are prepently unimown to this lDapartment. The witnasses
whosa location ia desired with thelr last known addresses, insofar
as known to this Department; are listad as follows:

aat Mr. Franke
Y, Andratta
Mr. Honnassy

A



KENKIGHT ﬂ'I{I
Homa 1 « 0= E‘u Chome Mosawa-Cho,
Office: No. I-th Finhi Oinza Eh‘u.ﬂ-ﬂfu, Tekyo
c/o West Oinza Bullding, Tokyo

SHICETSUOU TEUNEISHI
Homa1  No. 28, Kyomachi, Keohl, Japan

GRORGE MITSUSHIO (MAKAMOTO)
Homes 218 Jiyugecka, Hoguro-iu, Tekyo th: 08-4201
Officer 2~2-Lhome, Ote-machi, Chiyeda, —
cfo fn'-:im Mutunl Life Insurance ﬂ'h
Phons: 23-3333

KEMNETH ISHIX
: Hﬂ:.‘t Eﬁwu — MPI mﬂ, Pm’ m EW
o/o Postmaster, San Francisco
Callfornia, UBA
Honot 580, 2-Chone, lakameguro, Meguroku,
Tolcyo, Japan

SRIZ0 (DAVE) HUOA
2281, 1-Chone, Sanno Cmori-Ku
Tokyo, Japan

SHINJIRD IGARASHI
478 Takinogawa-machi
Takinogmra, Tokyo, Japan

EAN MING
¢/o Taubakl
936 Eami-Rurata
Toteuka=¥u, Yokohasa, Japan

EIRALY KOHDTSURA
28 Okndo-machi, Kemamoto-shi
Tokyo, Japan

HOTOHU KII
2560 Wakabayashi
Satagaya-ku
~ Tokyo, Japan
YUKIO IKEDA :
Office: FBroadoasting Corporation of Japan
Yo, 22 Choms Usidsaiwal-Cho Chiyoda-iu, Tokyo
Homa:  No. 24l=l Choms Amanuma Suginami-iu, Tokyo
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GHIGERU ORAHOTO
Talocommunications Durenu
Ministry of Communications
2~ Wagato-cho, Chuo=ku, Tokyo, Japan

YOSHITOSHI TANABE
fi17 Daita 2, Satagaya, Tokyo, Japan

BERJANIN (OGIAS
Manila Timos, Manila, Frilippina Islands

EDWARD YOSHIO KUROISHI
Radio Tokyo

SUGIYAMA HARIS
Al6, Ofuna, Hanogawa=ken, Japan

HIGADHT MORIYAHA
oo New Pacific Dand
Tokyo, Japan

SATOGHY NAKAMURA
2660 Kotake=Cho, nerima=ku
Tokyo, Japan

SHIKICHI OSHIDARI
ly Choma
Shimo—-moguro, leguro-ku
Tokyo, Japan

ISANU TAHAZAKI
303, 2 chom, Keonii, Suginame-ku
Tokyo, Japan

HIROSHI MNILHO
585 Eamikurada-cho
Tozuka=ku
Yokohana, Jepan

It would ba appreciatad if préper orders would be lssusd by

your Uepartment through sppropriate channels looking toward the end
that the prospactive Covernment witnezses abovemantlioned be Lmmediately
eontacted by military personnel in Japan, and Manlla, and alarted at
ongo for thelr ansulng trip to San Franmclsco. Arrangements for the
transportation of sald wltnespos from Japan and Manlls to fan Francliooo
should ba made by the Dopartmsent of the Army, and as abovemsntioned,

it is suggested that when the orders, with reference to tha subject
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matter of this latter are cut, that the same take into considerse-
tion the desired arrival in tha United States of said witnesses
not later than June 21, 1949, at San Francisco, California.

Whan arrangements are effectad by the Department of

tha Army for the transportation of sald witnesses to San Francisco,
it is requested that you advise this lepartment of the expected tima
and place of arrival of said witnasses in this country so that rep-
resentatives of this Department wlll in the noar future be abls to
formulate plang for the arrival and housing of sald witnesses, during
thelr sojourn in this counbry. The Deparimsnt of Justice will pro-
vida for the wolfare of the witnssses abovementioned on thair arrival
in the United Statea. The Departsent of Justice will reimburse the
Dapartment of the Army for the axponses incident to the transporta-
tion of tha abovemantioned witnasses from the Orient to San Franclsco.

Flsass rest assured that your cooperation herein iz greatly
appraclated by this Departasnt.

Regpegtfully,
For tho Attornoy denaral

ALEXAKDER N. CANPHELL
Assistent Attorney Oaneral



Letter from Wayne Collins, attorney for the defense, to
Tom DeWolfte, Special Assistant to the Attorney General,
et al.



WAYNE M, COLLINS

Attorney at Law :
Milla Tower, 220 Bush Btreet
San Franciscoe 4, California

June 23, 194%

Hon. Tom De Wolfe, Epecial Assistant to the Attorney Generel,

San Frenclsco, California,
Hon. Tom O, Clark, Attorney CGeneral, Weshington, D. C.
Hon. Frank J. Hennessy, U. 8. Attorney, 2an Franclsco, Callf.

Gentlemen:

U.2.0.0, San Francleco

I am informed that the Department of Justice ordered some nine-
teen witnessee for the progecution brought from Japen to teatify
at Kra, Iva T. d'Aquino'e trial. It is my understanding that, es
e matter of officisl courtesy, they were ordered parcled without
bond upen theilr arrival here by plane and that they are %to have the
freedonm of the country until the trisl is concluded. A majority,
AT not all of thosa prosecution witnesses, ars allen enemlea of
the United Btates.

Several Tormer Allled soldlers have volunteered to come from
Australia to testify for the defense. Advice reaches me that 1t
has besen decided not to extend them a llke courtesy and that bonds
muet be posted to enable them to galn admigsion to this counftry
to testlify for the defendant. g

Ho objection is raised to the admieelon of the prossocuticon's
alien enemy Japanese witnesses without bond. I do profest, however,
that to deny former Austrelian soldlers who are our Allles the
right to enter thie country to testlfy for the defendant unless
bonde be posted for them is a flagrant discourtesy to them and 1s
egn arbltrary disorimination agalnet Mrs. d'Aquino who 1s penniless.

in conseguence, I demand that the defense witnesses coming
from sbroad to testify at Mre. d'Aquino'e trial be authorlzed to
enter the United States for thaet purpose without posting bonds to
guarantee thelr admission and departure and wilthout belng annoyed
by government agents and without being surrounded by government
red tape.

Yery trul oursa,

Duplicate Original to:
Commisgioner of Immigration,
Washington, D. C.
District Direotor, USI&ENE,
Sen Franeiseco, Calir.




Letter from Frank J. Hennessy, U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District of California, to Alexander M.
Campbell, Assistant Attorney General
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June 24, 1949.
num‘gﬁrJfr. (

AIR MALIL

Alexander M. Campbell, Esg.,
Asslatent Attorney General,
Department of Justlce,
Washington, D. C.

8ir: Re: United States ve. Iva Togurl D'Aquino,
. Your reference l46-28-1941,

Reference 1s made to the above entitled treason
prosecution presently pending in thie Jjurisdiotion. This
weak several motions and subpoenas duces tecum were
gerved upon Tom DeWolfe and myself. The motions were for
production end inspection of State, War and Justlice De-
partment official records and were interposed pursuant to
the applicable provisions of F.R. Orim. P, 16, 17s The
motione were of an exploratory nature and were extremely
bfoad and general.

The above motlions were resisted by Mr. DeWolfe
and mynelf and we moved to quash the aubpoenas duces
tecum referred to above,

After argument on the above mentioned motions
on 20 and 22 June, 1949, Chlef Federasl Judge Roohe
denied defendant's motlions for production and inspeotlon
of Government doouments and granted the motions of Mr,
DeWolfe and myself to quash the subposnas duces teoum
aforesaid. Much of the contents of the above mentioned
documents, whose production was sought, was confidential
and privileged.

The trial of this csuse on lts merits i1s
scheduled to commence on 5 July, 1949, and it ls
expected thet the seme will go Torward ap scheduled.

The Department will be kept advised as to all
material developmernts that ensue hereln.,

Respeotfully,

Frank J. Hennessy,
United States Attorney.



Letter from Frank J. Hennessy, U.S. Attorney for the
Northern District of California, to Alexander M.
Campbell, Assistant Attorney General
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AIR MAIL 16 July 1949

Alexandey M. Campbell, Eag.,
Assistant Attorney Ceneral,
Criminal Division,
Department of Justloe,
Weshington = 856, D. G.

Dear Mr. Campbell:

Re: United States v. Iva Topurl DlAguine = Traason
: Enur anurunnu ﬁa. IIE:%E—IﬁiI

Reference is made to the above entitled tresson prosacu=
tion presently pending in this jurisdiction. We are Just
coneluding the sscond week of the trial proccedings in this
Federal oriminal capital litigation., The trial 1s golng
rather slowly and, unless the tempo of the =amo iz satepped up,
it s feared thot the entire proceedings mipght not be concluded
until Septomber.

The reason [or the lengthy trial proceedings 1s the pro-
tracted cross-examination to whigh Government witnesses are
being subjected by the defense. HNumerous obhjeationa to the
defendantis cross-examination of Oovernment wltnesaes have heen
interposed to date on varlious legal pgrounds. For ths most part,
aald objections have been pustained. We intarpoee these objec-
tionas with some reluctanse, dus to the famot that we do not wish
to give the jury the impression that the Govermment is consistently
objecting and consequently has something to hide. On the other
hand, the Court is handling the case in a very judicial snd falr
manner and i1s glving the United States all reasonable latltude
in connection with ths introduction of 1ts proof.

Messrs. Hogen and Enapp are astively participating in the -
trigl of this case., MNpr. Hogan is examining some government
witnesses in open gourt in the Government's case in chief. It
{s planned to have Mr. Enapp cross-examine some of the defend-
ant's wltnosses, probably Major Cousens end Norman Reyes. It
is expocted that Wallage Ince, Norman Reyes, Charlea Cousens,
Mark Streeter, and other former prisoners of war will teatify
for and on tehalf of the dsfendant. .



-2 -

The defense in 1te cross-exemination to date has mought
to dwell on the alleged brutal conditlons under which Amaxloan
prisonera of war were forged to exlat durdng the perlod of
time covered in the indlotment and in lssus in thie come. The
Govamment has conaistontly objected to thia line of teptimony
88 baing ismaterial and as gonatituting not proper ecross-
examination, Teo a certain extent our objections agalinat this
lina of testimony have been sustained., We must awalt, however,
A latsr date to noowrataly determine what the Court's rling
will be with raferance to this matter. It i1s obvious that the
dafonse 18 geoking to shift the spotlight from defendant to
gonditions at tha prisoner of war camps and to divert attentlon
from the defendant. All appropriate, ressonable,. and proper
efforts are being made hy the United States to binuk this
strategy of ths defendant. Every sttempt, likewlse, 1s being
made to expedits the triel of this cause.

¥r. Fogan wlill be one of the Covernment witnesses and is
shortly to take the stand. Tnder the ground rmiles in thia
Jurisdistion any coumael for aither party litigant who testifies
iz preclunded from arguing. Conseguently, if the trial bascomes
protraotad, ag 18 pressntly anticipated, it may becoms neceppary
to utilizge the services of Mr. Hnapp in moking one of the final
argumants to thuriurr. He 1a, an sbove ptated, motually partic-
ipating in the trial and likewlise handling matters involving
nuuuuunr{ lagal reseanroh. Bepoause of the facte above stated,
his participation in the trial of thie casms will give him firate
hand knowlsdge concerning the currcunding feets end olrgumstances
on the aaslgnment on which he hes baan sent here by tha Depart-
ment. His participation in tha trial of this case will be of
material advantage and assistance to him in connection with the
gpecific asslgnment on which he was dispatoched here by the
Department. : '

Ploaso roat assured that the Department wlill be kept
advised as to all material developments that ensue herein.

Reapeotfully,

Prank J. Hennessy
United States Attorney
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July 22, 1943

Alexander M. Campbell, Esq.
Assistant Attorney Cencral
Departzment of Justica
ﬁaﬁhingbm, De Qs

Re: United States v. Iva T%ri D'Aquino
Your Hef.t Ll

Dear Mr. Campbell:

Reference is made to the abeve entitled treasen prosecution
presently pending in this distriet. e are now concluding the third
week of the trial proceedinga. The cass promises to be an exbtended
and protracted cone and may not culminate until Sopbesber,. This past
week the two main witnesses for and on behalf of the United States
were on bhe witnoss stand in an endeaver to prove the overt acts
laid in the indictment, The trial court has allowed several days
croos examination on ench of sald witnesses over the objection of the
United States. However, as heretofore stated, the Pederal
siding is allewing the Unlted States every resscnable latitude In
connectlon with the introduction of lts proof to substantiste the
material allegations in the Indletment. ZBvery effeort will be made by
the Government to expedite the irlal of this case locking toward the
and that no wnreassnable delays In the trial procecdings ensue.

Jamos W. Knapp from the Departmant is actively participating in
the trial proceedings and is rendering invaluable assistance con-
cerning matters invelving required and necessary legal research.

It 1s thought that at this juncture that the United States has
made out a prima facle case sufficient to withstand a motion fer
Judgment of aecquittal. Of course, what the result of this protracted
faederal oriminal capital 1litigation will be cannct be foretold.

Tha Department will be kept advised as to all material develop-
mants that ensue herein,

Respact.fully,

Frank J. Hennassy
United States Attorney

i -;- i\
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ATR MATIL 12 Aupgust 1949

Alexander M. Campbell, Eaq.,
Asalstont Attorney COenaral,
Department of Justlge,
wl!hiﬂstﬂﬂ EE' D:Cas

Daar Mr. Campbell:

Ret TUnited Btates v. Iva Toguri D'Aquino
Your Refereonce No. 1l46=-28<18941

Reforence is made to the above-entitled tresson
prosecution presently pending in this jurisdiection.

The Government wlll reat 1ts case in chief this
afternoon or next Monday, 15 August. As previously
stated, the Government's case took a long time because
of the sxtended nature of ocross-oxamination allowed
defendant by the Court. This crosa-examinatlion
involved faocts and circumstances concerning Amerlican
prisonera of war who brosdoast over Radle Tokyo during
the late war. In some measure, this cross-examination
was rolated to the defendant's amotivitles in issue
herein. Insofar as the same was not related to the
lasuea on trial, the Government wans reasonably succeas=
ful in obtalning rulings from the Court limit the
protracted oross-examination of each Government witneaa
puraued by defenseo counsel.

Bvery effort 1s belng and has been mades to expedite
the trial of this federal oriminal capital litlgation.
It 1z believed that a prima facle case has been made out
for the jury. The Department will be kept advised as to
all materidl developmenta that ensue hereln.

Respectfully,

Frank J. Hennoasy
United States Attorney
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ATR MATL _ August 20, 1940

Alexander M. Campbell, Esg.,
Assletant Attormey Oeneral,
Dopartment of Juatioge,
F“hlﬂstﬂﬂ_* s Cs

Dear Mr. Campball:

Re: United Statea v. Iva Togurli D'Aquino
Your Reference No. l46-88-1041

Reforence is made to the above-entitled troeason
rosecution presently pending in this jurisdiction. Yos-
rday concluded the meventh trial week of these procecd=-
ings. The defenso 1s now on. Every effort is being made
by the Court and the Government to expedite the trial
proceedinga, looking toward the end that tho case and
lssues horein inwvolved sdre sultmitted to the petit jury as
scon as posoibls and practicable.

Former Australlsn Ammy Major Cousens snd Amorican
Army' Offiger Wallmce Ince were on the witneass stand this
past woeek. Theyr testified to numercus Jepanese atroclties
of war, which evlidence waa vigorously objected to by the
Government, but wns admitted by the Court after the defense
was able to show that knowledge of the same was brought
home to the defendant by sald allied ex-prisoners of war
during her broadeasting aotivities, This evidence was
admitted by the Court on the theory that it wémld have soms
probative value on the question of whether or no defendant
was undsr daress. The teatimony referred to was not faver-
able to the Oovernment, and congelivably may have somd
deleterious effeat mgainat the Government when welghed by
the Jury. However, damaging admissions were eliolted on
aross-oxamination ﬁj the United States fyom the witnessen
aforemantlionad and thelr credlblility was to some axtent
smuccepafully attacked by tha United Stntes, The witnesses
above-mentioned were gross-examined by Jamsaa W, ¥napp from
the Department in & moat able and competent fashion.



Horman Enﬁf-, a former Army offleor with the
 Philippine Avmy end & priscner of war working at Radio
Tokyo, has testified to the same effect as a defonse
witness and 18 now under crons-sxemination. It is
believed that the Government will be ressonably succeas-
ful in attacking his ocrediblility.

Sumsarizing, 1t is believed that & fact lssue
has boen developed and that the eonfliet in the evlidence
which presently exists will in its finsl anamlysis be re=-
solved by the jury as a fact question. It becomes
apparent now that all legal obstnoles have been overcome
by the United States and that the case will go to the
jury. The final outcome of thla extended and protracted
fodaral eriminel eapital litigation is, of course, wholly
speculative, problematieal, and conjectural.

It 12 believed thet the case will go to the jury
by 15 September, and maybe prior to that time. Insofar
as possible, we shall endemvor to submit to you a weekly
report showing the progress effected in this proceeding.
Please rest sssured that the Department will be kept
advised as to all material developments that ensue herein.

Respectfully,

Frank J. Hennessy
United States Attomey



Synopsis of the criminal trial of Iva Ikuko Toguri D'Aquino
(aka "Tokyo Rose") by J. Eldon Dunn, Federal Bureau
of Investigation
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REFEREECE &

. DETAILS:

EYHNOFEIS OF FACTS:

fornin ot San Franoleco.

Iriel of mabjoot began T-65-49 in Federal Distriet
Court for Seuthern Mvlaslem af Horthern Matrist of
Califernie akt 8an Fronolsoo, lNames of wltnesses who

testified together with brief summary of testimony

sot forth, On §-20=48 jury returned verdiot

guilty and in Speolal Findinga found subject pullty
only on overt aot mmbor six as alloged in indictment,

of

0n 10=E=40 Foderal Judge MICHAEL J. ROCHE sentonced
subjoct to ten years in oustoedy of Attorney Ceoneral

and to pay a fine of §10,000. Parole repert
disposition sheat submitted.

-0 =
Bureau File No, 61-11,000,

Roport of Speolal Agent J. ELDON DUMN dated
June 21, 1949, at San Frehoelseco.

AT GAN FRANCIECD, CALIFORNTIA

The trial of the subject bepan om July 5, 1949 in the Federal
Distriot Court for the Southern Divislon of the Nerthern Distriet of Cali=-
There are being set forth hereurnder names of the
witnesses who teatified for the govermment and for the defense together with
& short summary of their testimony.
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GOVERKMENT WITFESEES

J. RICHARD EISENHART '
117 Parnington Road
Rochestor, How York

EISENHART tootlfied that ho was o momber of the U, 3, Army and
nasigned to the Guard et the Yokohama Prison at the time subjoot was incorcernted
there in Ootober, 1846, He said that gubjoot autographed n Japanese yen noto
with the name IVA TOGURI "TOKYD ROSE." This was introduced by the Govermment

In avlidanoo,

k

r
FREDERICK G. TTLLMAW
Spocial Apont
Federal Buresu of Investlipation

Speoinl Apent TILLMAY testified that he had observed subject
write her pame and that he was Familiar with the eppearance of subjootis
sipnature. Through him tho Goverrment introduced into evidenso various dooumenta
relating to subject's oltizenship whiech subjeect had signed, Special Apent
, TILLMAY alss tostified durlng the telal that he hed ebiained a sipned stotement
from the subjoot while sha wns inocarcerated in Japan on the orders of tha U, 8,
Army whiah ul.mt:rd sgtatemont woas introduced in evidense and read te the Jurys

On rebuttal Spooinl M_’qnt TTLLAAY toatified thnt he wag prosent
on l:llu‘h-n-'hgr 2 and 6, 1948 whon aipned stoatements wore obtadned from defenze
witnoss KORUAE REYES ond that FEYES signed those statemoents voluntarily oand
atatad thot they wora the truth,

JOHN VAN EYCKEW, Captain of
Army Transport CENERAL H. F. HODGES

Captain VAN EYCKEN testified that as Captain of the USAT GENERAL
H. F. HODOES his ship transportod subjeot from Japan to the United States,
firat arriving in the United Statos ot San Fransiseo, Californis. Captaln
VAN EYCEEM gaid that subjoot was taken aboard at Yokohema, Japan on Soptembor 3,
1948 and arrived at the Port of San Franoisso on September 25, 1548,

JOHN P. PROSMAK, Captain
Corpa of Hilitary Polioe
Ue 3. Army

Captain PROSVAKE testified that he wos nssigned to guard the

- -
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subjoot from Jupan to the Unlted States smd that ho took subjeot into custody
at the Supame Prison, Yokohsma, Japen mnd brought her to Sen Francisco, Cali-
fornia, where mubject was delivered to Speoisl Agents of the Federal Buresu
of Investipation. :

KATHERINE STULL, Major
. Us S, Ammy

Major STULL testified that she was the fomalo puard assigned
to conduct the subject from Sugemo Prison, Tokyo, Japan te the-Port of San
Franolzeo whore subject was deliverod to Agemts of the FOI.

TUEKIO TEEDA
Tokyo, vYapan

IEEDA testifiod that he is at present and was durlng 1944 and 1946
-an officlel of Fadio Tokye in Tokyo, Japan ard that he was head of the Persomnel
Seoction. Oovernment introduced in evldence the officlal personal history card
of subject which was meintained at Radio Tokyo at Tokyo, Japan during the peried
that she brosdosst there through IERDA.

MARY HIGUCHI '
JYokohaa, Japan

Miss HIOUCHI testified that che wns an employoe of Radio Tolkyo
and waa acquainted with subject during the time that subject broadeast frem
Tokyo, Japan, Miss HIOUCHI stated that she had typed seme of the radio soripts
used by the subject and testified that subject hod broadoast statements tending
to make Americsn troops homeslck and that subject broadeast other than enter-

. talmment to the U. 8. troops. '

1
SHIGETSUGU TSUNEISHI
Tokyo, Japan

TSUFRISHT testified that during the war he was & career officer
of the Japansse Army snd es such was aselpgned to the Armqy Propaganda Seotion ns
a Wajor, He stated that propagende from Redio Tokyo wae brosdeast at the
instance of the Japanese Army as a part of thelr psycholopical warfare against
the United States troops. He testified that the "Zero Hour" program was part

- of the Japamese Army plan of psychologioal warfare and that subjeot broadoast
P panda on the "Zero Hour™ to the Unlted States troops, Ho further testified

-8 -
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thet subjeot was not compelled to broadonst nor was she under any ooerclon
omanating from the Jopanose Army.

1t 18 to be n-.'-tﬂd in lengthy cross=examination defenss counsel
nttmptud to show through this witness that all eivilian personnel at Radio
Tokyo wers under coercion and duress to broadoast, but defense nmmlnl WAE un-
nble to noocomplish this purposo.

DAVID W, SWIFT
2462 Central Avenue
Alamada, California

Mre. SWIFT is employed s o Customs Agont and was qualified by
the Government as an interpreter in the trial of subjoot and wns used by the
Govermment to interpret lor all Japamese testifying who sould not speak English.

CLARE LEE
Monterey Peninsula Country Club
Dol Mente, Califorpim

Mp, LEE testified that ms a newspaper reporter he first inter-
viewod subjeot on Soptomber 1, 1845 at the Imporial Hotel in Tokyo, Jl]:l:q.. At
that time CLARE LEE and HARRY BRUFDIDOE interviewed uu'h-jiﬂt, mabject having
firat identified hersolf as the one and enly Tolkyo Rose and CLARE LEE typed

,notes ‘during the sourse of the interview ag to what subjeot eaid, Inatent
notes were introduced by the Government in evidenoe and digolosed subjoot was
brosdeasting from Japan voluntarily and that she had stated to CLARE LEE that
she had broadonst concorning the loss of American ships during ome of the naval
‘battles, It iz to ba noted that this statement probably roeferred to the Battle
of Leyta Gulf which was tho basls of the sixth overt ast read in the indioteent
which was the enly overt mot on which the jJury returned a verdiet of pullty,

JOHE B, HOGAW
Attorney, Criminnl Mwvislon
s 5. Daportment of Juatioe

My, HOGAN testlfied that he wont to Telkyo, 'leu on ordars from
the Departmefnt of Justioe and on March 26, 18948, interviewsd subjeot at the
Dai Tohi building in Tokyo, Japan at which time he showed subject a photostatie
sopy of the notes taken by CLARK LEE at the time ho interviewed subject, MNr.
HOGAN tostified that subject read the photostatio copy of the notes, initianlling
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oach page and slpning her name at the end and stated that the notea were trues and
corract ms to her interview with CLARE IEE, Me. HOOAN stated that HARRY T,
BRUNDIDCE was prasent when he interviewed subject,

- KEREICHI OKI
Tokyo, Japan

CEI teatified he was an offieinl of Tadic Tokyo in Tokye, Japan
during the time subject was employed thore broadoasting propaganda to the U, 8.
troopss OKI testified that the purpose of the "Zere Hour", the program in whioh
subleot appeared, was to induce a feeling of homesloknoss mmong Amerioan troops
and that subjJeot broadoaszt in furtheranoe of that purpose. OKI testified to

all of tho ovort mcts alloged in the indictment sgainst the subject,

GECRGE HIDEQ MITSUSHIO

Tokyo, Japan #

MITGUSHIO testified that ho was an officiel of Radio Tokye during
the time subject broadonst from Tokyo, Yapan and that he was head of tha "Zero
Hour" programs Ho tostified that subjeot voluntarily broadoast propaganda to the
Amerioan troops on this progrem and the purpose of the progran was to induce a
fooling of homesickness in American troops impairing thoir will to fight the
Japanose, . ;

MITSUSHIO testlified to the truth of mll overt mots in the indiet-
mont agalnst the subjeot except the seventh overt not,.

DALE ERAMER
260 Woat Blat Street
How York Clty, H.Y.

FRAMER teostifled that as a Sergeant in the U, 5, Army he was
aasigned to the Yenk Magazine during the war with Japan, He testified that in
Septombor of 1945 he interviewed subjeot & number of times in Tokyo, Yapan, and
that subjeot gave him & copy of ome of her randio broadoasts sutosraphed IVA
TOOURI "TOKYO ROSE."™ He toatified that ‘subjeot told him that she first went
to Japan to study modioine, that it was too much bother for subjsot to take out
Japanese olti onship and that her husbend often told hor she might get in trouble
with the United Statos after the war beoause of her broadoasts, ERAMER slso
tostified that subjeot olaimed that she was "Tokyo Rose"™ and that in her broad-
cngts she called herself "Orphan Ann,"

14 =
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JAMES B. EEENEY
Fhiladelphia, Ponnsylvanda

KEMYEY tostifiod that ho wos in the U. 5, Aroy aosigned %o
the Yank Mapazine and that he wae prosent during the intorviows between DALE
KERAMER and the subjeot.

JAMES THOMAS REITZ, Major -
United States Army

ajor REITE testified that he was attached to the CIC in
Yolohama, Japan and that subjoot's husband brought to the CIC a mumber of radio
soripta purported to be thoso broadonst by subjeot durding the war, which soripts
he turned over to Eajor REITZ of CIC, Through Major REITZ these soripts were
introdused by the Governmant into ovidonea,

MERRITT GILLESPIE PAGE.
446 Bulprave Rond
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania

PACGE testified he wma nssipned to the 308th CIC Detashment and
that in such oaprolty intorviewed subjeoct, He testified subjeot told him that
Unjor COUSENS chosa hor to be an announser on the propaganda broadeast and that
sha used the nama of "Orphan Ann" on the broadeasts of the "Zero Hour" and !
that she took the job beonuse she thought it would be poed oxporiense and zhe
wanted to supplement hor incomes PAGE nlso testified that the purported soripts
of subject's broadoastz plven to Major REITZ wore afterwards piven to him for
inolusion in subject®sa investipative file.

WILLIAM F. FENIMORE
Speoinl Armort
Federnl Burean of Investipation

spooinl Apent FENIMORE testified that in Boptombor, 1945 he waa
a nomber of the Us 6. Army attached to the Countor Intelligence Corps smd that
he was with MERRITT PAGE during these interviews with the subjeot,

AMORY F. PERNIVELL
Regede, Colifornin

Mrs PERNIWELL, an n:r::plnyau' of the Forolpn Droadonst Intelliponce

- G -
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Service, was qualified ms an exzport radie engineor end testificd that in 1944
he was head monitor at the FBIS listening station in Portland, Orogon and aa
such monltered certeln of subjeot's brosdoasts from Radio Tokyo and that
regords were out of theso broadomsts, Through Mr. PEMNIWHLL Govermment intro-
duced into evidence recordings of two of the broadoasts made by tho subjoot

from Tokyo, Japan.

SANUEL VERWON PAY
Houston, Toxas

¥r. FAY was qualified as an export radio ongineer and tostified
that he was a radio engincer employed by FEIS at Portland, Oregon during the
time that the records were out of subject's broadoasta from Radlo Tokyo and
that he assisted in seouring the records which were introduced by the Uovern=
ment into evidence,

WILLIAM A. SODARD -
Cherleston, West Virginiae

Mr, BODARO was qualified as an oxpert radio engineer and testified
that in 1944 he was employed by the FBIS at Bilverhill, “aryland, and that he
monitored and recorded a program broadeast by the subject 'lhluh rocording was
introduced by the Gevermment in nﬂﬂu’ﬂnh

CWENDOLYN BAPTIST
Kount Rainier, Maryland

M ge BAPTIST was qualified by the Uovermment as an expert memltoer
of shortwave radio broadoasts and tostified that she had prepared o transcript
of the progrems recorded by FBIE emanating from Radie Tolkyo in which subjeot
broadonst, The transoripts were introduced by the govermment intoe evidenoe
and used by the eourt when listening to the records of subjeot’z broadoasts
te onable the sourt to follew the words more olomolys

KENNETH ISHII
Tokvo, Japan

ISHII tostified that he was employed at Fadio Tolkyo as o radio
anpounser and that he listonod to subjeot's statemonts brondesst over the alr
from Radie Tokyo which statements were propapgenda in fevor of the Japanece.
ISHII also tostificd reparding overt ast mumbsr seven ss stated in the indlot=
-h't'

T i
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GILBERT V. VELASQUEZ
Log Anpeles, Californie

VELASQUEE testified that he resided in tho smme neiphborhood
ag the subjoot in Loas Angoles, Californim in the 1850"s and that he listened
to the "Zero Hour" programs from Radie Tokyo during the war when he was a
mmmber of the U, 5. Navy, , VEIABQUEL testified that he recogniged subject's
voloe which he heard on the "Zoro Hour" broadonst and thet he renombered stato-
monts made by the subject which statements he repeated in substance. Those
gtatemsnts contrastod living conditions of troops in the South Papifle with theo
ensy living at home in the United States.

FRANCIS X, GREEN
Washinston, D.C.

Mr. GREFN was qualifisd by the Govermment as an expert radio
onginear and testified that as a former offioclal of the FBIS the recordings of
subjactts brordensts wore made under hias dirootlons

TED SHERDEMAN
Hu-llmndl Californin

Mr, SHERDEMAN testified that ms a Lieutenant Colonel in charge
of the Armed Foroes Radio Service ha listomed to subjeoct's broadeoasts on the
"Zoro Hour" from Fadio Tokyo and testified to statements which he rocalled
hearing her make cover the radio.

JULES I. SUTTER, JR.
Burbank, Califernis

Mr, SUITER testified that as o formor member of the fray Sipnal
Gﬂrpl he listenmed to broadoasts of the "Zero Hour" from Hadio Tokyo and testified
to propagends statemonts subjoot had made cover that broadoast durlng the wars

MARSHALL HOOT
Alhambra, Californde

HOOT testified that as & member of tho U. 8. Navy he llstened
to0 subjeot's broadoasts from Radlo Tokyo during the wur and testifled to the
propaganda statoments subjoct had made over tho radio, -
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SAM CAVIIAT
Van Jaya, Californin

CAVHAR testified that ns a former member of the U. 5. Havy ha
heard subjoot broadeast from Tekyo, Japan over the "Zero Hour" during the war

with Yapan snd testified to cortaln propaganda statements which he recalled
gubjoct moade in hor radio broadeasts.

WILLIAM HALBERT THOMPSOH
Elversido, California

THOMPS0H tostified sg a former member of the Uy 3. Marine Corps
he recalled hearing the subject brosdecast from Hadle Tokyo on the "Zero Hour"
and testifiod to certain propagands statements which he recanlled subject made
ovor the radio.

EDHARD KUROISHI
Tokyo, Japan

KIUROISHI teotiflied that he was moquainted with subjeot in Telkyo,
Jupan, and theat it was at his suggestion that she first obtained employment at
Radio Tokyo ns o typlst. KUROISHI testified that she was not foroed to work
Tor Wadio Tokyos .

SATOSHI NAKAMURA
. Tokyo, Japan

FAEAMURA testified that he was employed ne Master of Ceremonles
on the "Zero Hour" at Radio Tokyo from August, 1844 until February of 1945
apd that ho observed subject broadecast on the "Zero Hour" radle program. He
testiflied that she called horself "Orphan Ann" and also recalled propapands
statements which subjoect had made on tho redle broadoastss WAKANURA tntl.i‘ind
soncoraing overt ast mmber slx as alleged in the indlotment.

Dr. CLAIR T, STEGOALL
Los Anpeles, Californin

Prs BTEGCALL teatifiod thoat he was soquainted with subject prior
to 1M1 when the subjeot jJourneyed to Japan and that subjest told him she was
golng to Japan to study medlolne ms she had & mmber of relatives in ths medienl
profession thore,

-0 =
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YOSHITOSHI TAMABE

Tokyo, Japan

TANARE was qualified by the Govorrment as n radio engipsor
having basn amployed at Fadio Tokye for a mmber of yeara prior and durlng
the war, As such TANABE testified that the froilities of madio Tokyo were
capable of broadessting to the South Fuoifie ard the United Statos and the
broadeant had sufficient power to bo heard through shortwave receiving sota,

SHIGURE OREAROTO
Tokyo, Japan

OKAMOTO was qualified by the Govermment as a nﬂln antinoar
having been employed for a mmber of yoars at Hadio Tokyo. OKAMOTO testlfled
to the technical setup at Radio Tokyo.

ETWAMT MOMOTSUEA
Eﬁ‘-’t JIE

. MOMOTSUEA was qualified ne mn expert radle enginser having been
smployed at Redio Tokyo for a number of years. MOMOTSUEA also testifled concern-
ing the technioal ocapaclity of Rrdio Tokyoa

DAVID I, GILMORE
dponial Employeo
~ Federal Bureau of Investipation

OILMORE testified that he served with the U, 8. Marine Corps
‘during the war and that he listoned to broadoasts from Radle Tokyo made by
the subjest end recalled various propapanda statements subject had made in the
aourse of those broadeasts. ;

Fo HARRIS SUGTIYAMA
Tn'I:In. JEDAT

SUGIYAMA testified that ho was a staff announcer at Fadie Tokyo
during the wars As such he was sogquainted with subject and that she was not
under duress on the part of the Jopanese to make broadeasts, Parthoer testified
as to propapands statemonts made by subject on her redic progrum.

- 10 =
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HIGHASHY MORIYAMA
Tokyo, Japan

MORIYAMA testifled thet he was a repular atalf member of the
"Zero Hour" program and was well acquainted with the subjeet and her broadoasts
from Radio Tokyo during the war. MORIYAMA testified comcerning overt nots
. two, thres, four and eipht s nlleged in the indictment against tho subject.

SHINJIRO IGARASHI
Tokye, Japan

IGARASHI tostified that ho was omployed at Radlo Tokyo from
Vovembar, 1943 until Aupust of 1945 as a radic agnouncer and as anch was well
nogquainted with the subjoot during the time she broadoast from Fadio Tokyo. Ho
tostified ns to propagandn statemsnts subjoot made over the alr during the course
of har broadonsts.

MOToMT 15:I:I
'l'ug‘ru. apan

. WII testifiod he was employed at the Radlo Broedecasting Corporation
of Japan during the war mnd had cbserved mubjeot broadenst from Fovember, 1943
to Aupust, 1945, NII testified subject broadomst voluntarily 'snd tostified us
to propaganda statements he heard subject make in the course of her radioc broad-
onste. .

ISANT YAMAZAKT
To Japan

YAMAZAXT tostified that he was Vice=Chlef of the American
Continental Seotion of Tadic Tokyo during the war and was in charpge of the
- administration of the seotion which employed the subject at Radio Telgo. He
testified that he had heard hor broadcast and testified ss to certain propaganda
remarks he heard subjeot make during the course of hor broadoasts.

: ROBERT COMAN
Los Anceles, California

COWAN tostifiod that as a Sergesnt in the U, 8. Army he inter-
viewed subject in Tokyo, Japan after the war in whioch subjeot reinscted a bromd-
oast typleal of ones subjoot made from Radlo Tokyo during the war, COMAY oleo

=~ NI =
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toatified that he heard subject's broadcasts from Radio Tokyo and testified as
to propaganda statements subject made.

MARIANO Ss WILLARIN
m’-.‘lﬂ-l P-!I-l

VILLARIN tostified that ns n member of the U, 6, Army he had been
oaptured on Corroplidor and thoreaftor as a Philippine naticnal was teken to
Tokyo, Jvapan, VILIARIN testified that ho had observed subject broadomsting
from ‘‘adio Tokyo mand reoonlled propapanda stotemonts subjeot made during the
course of her broadoasts.

CHARLES F. HALL
Serpoont Ue 5« Alr Foroo

HALL tostlified that he listened to subject's broadomsts from
Radio Ipkyo during the war and recalled propagenda statemonts made by subjeot
durinz the course of hor brosdoastas L

RICHARD HENACHELL
Hew York Oity, H.Y.

HEMBCHELL toagtified that he was o membor of the U, B, Army Elpgnal
torps, Photographic Service, and that in that capaolty intorviewed subjeet in
Yokchama, Japan in September of 1845, He related what subject had sald during
this intorview gconcerning her broadoasts from Radio Tolye durlng the wars He
also testified that he had heard subjeet broadenst from Badio Tokyo during the
war and testlfled ns to propapends stoatements subject had made in the course of
har broadoasts,

DEFENSE WITNESSES

CHARLES HUGHES COUSERS
Sldnay, Mustralis

COUSENS testified that.ms a member of the Austmlian Army he was
ocaptured by the Jopanose et Singapore in 1842 and thereafter taken to Radlo Tokyo
where, by threats of death, he was foroed to broedosst propagenda frem Fadie Tokyo.

-12-
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Ho testified that subjeot broadeast on the "Zero Hour" ard that he had
previously advised subject of all of the horrible eiroumstances attending
hig eapture and the brutality on the part of the Japenese which he had
witnosged which put him in fear of his life and which induced him to
acquicsce to Japanese broadeast demands. COUSENS also testified that sube
ject during their mesociation at Hadio Tokyo brought him food, medicine and
oslothing. Ho teatified that subjeot was enti=Jopaneso and pro-American and
that he had plaged her under his orders &s an allied officer, telling her
that she should broadoast as the Japanese wished, but that she should do all
in her power to nullify the force and effect of the broadoasta.

. On orosg=cxamination COUSENS admitted broadoasting propagando
against the allied policy of unconditional surrender, stating he did not
boliove in unconditional surroender. GCOUSENS algo admitted having lived vory
woll at various hotels in Tokyo durlng the time of his broadonsta and making
eortaln visits with Japanese nationals to pelsha housoa.

WALLACE ELLWELL INCE
Major, Ua 5« Army
San Franoisco, Californin

INCE testified for subjeot in part substantiating the testimony
of COUSENS, howover, his testimony was somewhat limited since o statement had
baen obtained from him by Special Agentmof the FAI, In this statement, whlch
INCE mdmitted was trus, he stated he did not trust subject mnd that she broad=
cast from Radio Tokyo voluntarily durlng the war,

NORMANDO ILDEFONSO REYES, AEKA
Norman Royes
Hashville, Tennessoo

REYES testified that he was oaptured on Corregldor and together
with INCE taken to Tokyo where they were forced to broadoast propagande for the
Japanese, On direct exmminntion REYES substantianted the testimony of COUSEND
and INCE. On oross=oxmmination, howover, Govermment introduced in evidence two
signed statements obtained by Specinl Agents from REYES to the effect that he
and INCE were not threatened or forced to broadenst apd were treated very well
by the Jepanesse in payment for the broadoasts. Slgned statements from REYES ’
also disolosed that subjest was broadoasting propapanda voluntarily from Radlo
Tokyos. These signed statomonts, in a large measure, millifiod the testimony
of COUSENS and INCE mes to cosrolon and duress on the part of the Japanese towards
subjoots

= 15 =
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GEORGE NERBERT HEVSHAN
Log Angeles, Californis

HEWSHAW testifisd ne to the brutalities of the Japanese in
ferolng Anerican prisonars of war to broadoast from Radle Tokye. A signed
statoment obtained from HENSHAW by Speoial Agents disolosed that he was not
aoquainted with the subjeot and such information was brought out on crosg=
oxnminntion.

KEMHETIH GEORCE PARKYNS
Liverpool, Australim

FARKYNS testified that he was a momber of the Australian Alr
Foree captured and brought to "™adilo Tokyo by the Japanose to broadoast
propagandn. He tostified that he was foroced, under threat of death, to broad=-
oast from %adlo Tokyo. However, PARKYNS was not acquainted with subjeot and
- oould plve no direst testlmony coneerning hors

WILLISTON COX
Loulsville, Tormossceo

COX tontified that as a membar of tha Us 5. Army he was
captured by the Japanese during the war and thoreafter.tekem to Tokyo where ;
ha was forcod to broadeast for the Japanese, GOX, however,; was not moquainted
with subjeot and could offer no direot testimony concerning hor.

EDWIN EALBFLEISH, JR.
Captain, Us 9 Army

EALDFIEISH tostified as a momber of the U, 3« Army ho was
captured by the Japanese durlng the war, taken to Tokyo where he was foroed
to broadenst Japanose propapanda, but that he was not mequalnted with subject
ot that timo,

JAMES FRAVE WHITTEW
Torronce, Callfornis

WHITTEN teoptified thoat s a pembor of the U, 5, Havy he listened
%o broadonsts from Radic Tokyo durlng the war, but did not hear amy of the atate-
ments allegoed to have boon made by the subjeot and as testified teo by the Govern—
mont's witnozsesn.

=
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ADAM WELKER T
Ban Franolsco, Califeorniae

TELEER testifled that he listensd to radle brosdeasts {rom
Jopan during the war, but did not hear subjeot make any statemonts of o

~ propagandn rature.

MAE F, HAGERDOM
Everett, Mashingten .

Vrs. HAGERDOM toptified she listensd to shortwawve broadoasts
from Tokyo during the war, but did not hoar subjeot make any statements of a
propagands nature,

SAM STANWIEY
Blrkﬁhn California

Swm.tal.ﬂﬂaﬂ that he served in the Saaboes during the war
and ligtened to Medie Tokyo, but did not hear subjeot bromdoast propagandmn.

QUSTAVE C. CGALLAGHER
San Frenoiegoo, Californim

, OALLACHER testified that he also listenad to shortwave broad=
eagted programs from Japan during the war, but did not hear subjoat make state-
ments of o propaganda natura,

ROBERT SPEED
Bar'mhh Californin

SPEED testified ms a member of the U, 5. Hawvy he listened %o
broadeasts from Tokyo, Japan but did not hear subjest broadeast propaganda.

MALINT KANT GUPTA
San Franolsco, California

: GUPTA tostiflied that as a member of the Us. 8. Army he heard
broadonsts from Jepan during the war, but did not hear subject make any state-
ments of a propaganda nature, ;

-I‘E-
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YONEKO KANZAKX
New York Vity, N.Ys

Mre, EKANZAKI, n Kizel, testified that she broadecast from Fadlo
Tokyo during the war on the "German Hour®™ and was foroed to broadeast and
apsumad that subject also was forced to broadonst.

WILLIAM G, PADL
Fedwood City, Californla

PAUL tostified that as a momber of the U. 8. Favy he listencd
te radio broadeasts from Tokyo, Japan durins the war but did net hear subjoct
broadenst propapondn.

DUANE FRANELIN MOGIER :
Albany, Callforpninm

MOSIER tostifed as n membor of the U, 5, Marine Corps he
listenod to radlo broadoasts from Radio Tokyo during the war, but did neot
hear subjeot broadonat propogandn,

CHARLES SEXTON, JN.
San Franolseo, California

SEXTON testified that as n membor of the U, 85, Army he listoned
to broadonsts from Andlo Tokyo during the war, but did net hear subject broad-

oast propagandne

CHIYEEDQ ITO
Los Anpeles, California

IT0 tastified that sho nosompanied subjeot to Japan in 1941
and was woll mequainted with her during the time subjeot broadoast from Radio
Tokyo ond testified that subject was forced te so broadoast, A sipped statement
from ITO had been proviously obtained by Spooial Agemts of the FOI which wus
introduced in ovidences; The slpnéd statemont digolosed that subjeot broadonst
voluntarily and that she was happy and satlsfled with her job broadeasting
from Radio Tokyos °

ilﬂh
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MARTINH FRAY
Salinas, california

FRAY testifiod that after the war subjeot was incarcorated
and dended the right to have visits from people other than her husband and
denled the right to comfler with sn attorneys

FELIFE JURAIS DYAQUINO
Tokyo, Japan

DYAQUINO, husband of subjoot, testified in her behalf that she
was forced to broedeast end substantistod testimony of COUSENS and othor
prisoners of wars

IVA IKUKO TOGURI D'AQUING

- Subject testified in her owm defense denying overt mote alleged
in the indictment and also testimony of Oovermment witnesses as to propaganda
she broadeust over the alre

Defonse counsel also read in opon court depositions obtalned in
Japen from persons who had some knowledge of the notivities of the subjoot,
However, the depositiona were not writton into the record and did not in any
ma jor part rofute allegations in the indiotment that subject broadeast propaganda
:I.‘r-nnJHndin Tokyo durlng the peried of hostilitles between the Unlted States _
and Japans :

' On September 28, 1048, the Jury returned a verdlet of gullty
against the subject and in theoir Speciel Findings sogquitbed subjeot of all
allezed overt mots in the indioctment exocept overt met numbor six om which they
found the subject guilty, Overt met number slx, ds alloged in the indlotment
is quoted ns follows: g

"That on o dey during Octobor, 1844, the exnot date being to the
Orond Jurors unknown, said dn:l‘mdmtﬂ, at Tokyo, Japan, in a broadensting studio
of the Broadensting Corporation of Yapan, did speak inte a mlarephone conserning
the loss of ships."
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: On Ootober 6, 1049, Fedoral Judgi MI CHAEL J. ROCHE sentonoed
subjeot to ten yoars in tho oustody of the Atftorney General and to pay o
fine of $10,000.

ENCLOSURE: TO THE BUREAU

Three coples of parole report
One disposition sheat

= CLOSEDS=



Photographs of Iva Toguri, consisting of two "mug shots"
taken at Sugamo Prison on March 7, 1946.

Captions on the reverse of both photographs state:

"Captain Denton took me to Iva Toguri's house and made her
wear the light tan coat and had her put on her rimless glasses.
[ recognized her as the same girl who broadcast on the Zero
Hour program (signed) Emi Matsuda"
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Photographs of Iva Toguri, consisting of five images of her
wearing a coat and eye glasses. Captions on the reverse
of all images state:

"March 17, 1948

Name: Iva Toguri/

Date: December 5, 1944
Place: Radio Tokyo
(Signed) Martha Suzuki."


















Correspondents interview "Tokyo Rose." Iva Toguri






